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MACKENZIE

TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE
MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEMBERSHIP OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

Graham Smith (Chairman)

Claire Barlow (Mayor) John Bishop
Peter Maxwell Annette Money
Graeme Page Evan Williams

Notice is given of a meeting of the Finance Committee
to be held on Tuesday 1 March 2011
following the meeting of the Projects and Strategies Committee

VENUE: Council Chambers, Fairlie
BUSINESS: As per agenda attached
GLEN INNES

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

24 February 2011
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MACKENZIE

AGENDA FOR TUESDAY 1 MARCH 2011

| APOLOGIES
Il DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

1 MINUTES
Confirm and adopt as the correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Finance Committee
held on 1 February including such parts as were taken with the Public Excluded.
MATTERS UNDER ACTION

IV REPORTS
1. Finance Report

\% GENERAL.:
1. Appointment of Audit and Risk Management Committee
2. Civic Assurance — Draft Statement of Intent for 2011
3. LAPP Annual Report, Website Update, LAPP Credit Rating

VI  PuBLIC EXCLUDED
That the public, be excluded from the following part of the proceedings of this meeting

namely:
1. High Country Health Ltd — Report from Cr Smith
Reason for passing Ground(s) under
General subject this resolution in Section 48(1) for
of each matter relation to each the passing of
to be considered matter this resolution
High Country Health Ltd To Protect the Privacy of Persons 48(1)(a)(i)

Report from Cr Smith

This resolution is made in reliance on Section 48(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6
or Section 7 of that Act, which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or the relevant
part of the proceedings of the meeting in public are as follows: High Country Health Ltd — Report
from Cr Smith Section 7(2)(a)
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MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
FINANCE COMMITTEE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE,
ON TUESDAY 1 FEBRUARY 2011 AT 9.35 AM

PRESENT:
Graham Smith (Chairman)
Claire Barlow (Mayor)
John Bishop
Peter Maxwell
Annette Money
Graeme Page
Evan Williams

IN ATTENDANCE:
Glen Innes (Chief Executive Officer)
Paul Morris (Manager — Finance and Administration)
Rosemary Moran (Committee Clerk)

I APOLOGY:

There were no apologies.

I DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:

There were no declarations of interest.

i REPORTS:

1. MACKENZIE TOURISM AND DEVELOPMENT TRUST - QUARTERLY REPORT:

The Chairman welcomed Lesley O’Hara, Chairman of the Mackenzie Tourism and
Development Trust, and Philip Brownie, General Manager — Destination Mount Cook
Mackenzie, who attended to present the Quarterly Report of the Mackenzie Tourism and
Development Trust.

Ms O’Hara spoke to her report.

The General Manager also spoke to matters in his report including Starlight Reserve and
the Alps to Ocean Cycleway.

The Chairman noted the question Ms O’Hara had posed to Councillors regarding the
importance they placed on tourism and he invited Councillors to begin considering their
response. Ms O’Hara emphasised that, in terms of jobs in the District, the tourism
industry now provided greater volume and security than the agricultural sector.

Councillors suggested that more detail could have been provided in the report. The

Chief Executive Officer considered the report should be more strongly tied back to the
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half yearly report. He said he remained concerned about the figures relating to
commissions and retail sales against the forecasted budgets.

The General Manager said the report was based on the requirements set out in the
Statement of Intent; however more detail could be easily provided.

Ms O’Hara said that the Trust was happy to provide whatever information the Council
wanted and undertook to make available more robust variance reporting. She agreed
that if the Trust had a target which spelt out what was going to be done, it needed to
report against that target.

Resolved that the report be received.
Annette Money/Evan Williams

The Chairman thanked Ms O’Hara and Mr Brownie and the visitors left the meeting at
10.10 am.

2 FINANCIAL REPORT — DECEMBER 2010:

This report from the Manager — Finance and Administration was accompanied by the
financial reports for the period to December 2010.

Resolved that the report be received.
Graeme Page/Peter Maxwell

Transfund Income
The Manager — Finance and Administration undertook to show income from Transfund
separately in the report.

Reporting Against Performance Targets

The Chief Executive Officer said that there was room for another form of reporting, ie
against performance targets at least once in the course of a year as suggested by the
Auditors. He suggested the Committee could have a discussion about the issues which
they as elected members wished to monitor.

The meeting was adjourned at 10.40 am for morning tea and reconvened at 11.00 am.

Cr Williams joined the meeting at 11.15 am.

3 BANCORP QUARTERLY REPORT:

This report was the Quarterly Portfolio Report for the three months ending 30
September 2010 prepared by Bancorp Treasury Services Limited.

Resolved that the report be received.
Annette Money/Graeme Page

Cr Williams left the meeting at 11.35 am and rejoined the meeting 11.45 am
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4  AUDIT COMMITTEE — ESTABLISHMENT AND GOOD PRACTICE GUIDE:

This report from the Manager — Finance and Administration recommended that an

Audit and

Risk Subcommittee be established. It was accompanied by draft Terms of

Reference for a subcommittee and the Audit New Zealand Good Practice Guide for
Audit Committees in the Public Sector.

Resolved

that the report be received.
Claire Barlow/Peter Maxwell

Resolved:

1. That an Audit and Risk Subcommittee be established.

2. That Council adopts the following:

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE AUDIT AND RISK SUBCOMMITTEE

Voting Membership

The Audit

Quorum
2

Chair
The Chair

and Risk Management Subcommittee will have three Councillors.

will be elected by Council.

Frequency of Meetings
The Audit and Risk Management Subcommittee will meet on a quarterly basis or as

required.

Parent Body
The Subcommittee reports to the Finance Committee.

Objectives of the Subcommittee

The objec
Council to

a)

b)
c)
d)
€)

f)

tives of the Audit and Risk Management Subcommittee are to assist the
discharge its responsibilities for:

The robustness of the internal control framework and financial management
practices;

The integrity and appropriateness of internal and external reporting and
accountability arrangements;

The robustness of risk management systems, processes and practices;

The independence and adequacy of external audit functions;

Compliance with applicable laws, regulations, standard and best practice
guidelines; and

The establishment and maintenance of controls to safeguard the Council’s
financial and non-financial assets.

In fulfilling their role on the Audit and Risk Management Subcommittee, members shall
be impartial and independent at all times.
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Terms of Reference
The Subcommittee will have responsibility and authority to:
1 Internal Control Framework

111

1.1.2

1.1.3

review whether management’s approach to maintaining an effective internal
control framework is sound and effective;

review whether management has taken steps to embed a culture that is
committed to probity and ethical behaviour;

review whether there are appropriate systems, processes and controls in place
prevent, detect and effectively investigate fraud;

2 Internal reporting

2.11

2.2

consider the processes for ensuring the completeness and quality of
financial and operational information being provided to the Council,

seek advice periodically from external auditors regarding the

completeness and quality of financial and operational information that is

provided to the Council;

3 External Reporting and Accountability

3.1

3.2

3.3

agree the appropriateness of the Council’s existing accounting policies and
principles and any proposed change;

enquire of external auditors for any information that affects the quality and
clarity of the Council’s financial statements and statements of service
performance, and assess whether appropriate action has been taken by
management in response to the above;

satisfy itself that the financial statements and statements of service
performance are supported by appropriate management signoff on the
statements and on the adequacy of the systems of internal control (ie letters of
representation), and recommend signing of the financial statements by the
Chief Executive/Mayor and adoption of the Annual report.

4 Risk Management

411

4.1.2

review whether management has in place a current and comprehensive risk
management framework and associated procedures for effective identification
and management of the Council’s significant risks;

consider whether appropriate action is being taken by Management to mitigate
Council’s significant risks.

5 External Audit

.11

5.1.2

5.1.3

at the start of each audit, confirm the terms of engagement, including the
nature and scope of the audit, timetable and fees, with the external auditor;
receive the external audit report(s) and review action to be taken by
management on significant issues and audit recommendations raised within;
conduct a members only session (ie without any management present) with
external audit to discuss any matters that the auditors wish to bring to the
Subcommittee’s attention and/or any issues of independence.

6 Compliance with legislation, Standards and Best Practice Guidelines

6.1.1

review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring the Council’s
compliance with laws (including governance legislation, regulations and
associated government policies), with Council’s own standards, and Best
Practice Guidelines as applicable.
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Delegated Authority
The Audit and Risk Management Subcommittee will have delegated
authority to carry out activities within its terms of reference.

Claire Barlow/Evan Williams

5. AUDIT MANAGEMENT LETTER:

This report from the Manager — Finance and Administration was accompanied by the
Audit New Zealand Management Report on the Audit of Mackenzie District Council
for the year ending 30 June 2010.

Resolved that the report be received.
Peter Maxwell /Annette Money

The Manager — Finance and Administration spoke to the report noting in particular the
areas which included Management Comment on the opinions in the report.

The meeting was adjourned at 12.45 pm for lunch.

Over lunch the Mayor and Councillors met with Glen Campbell, the new Chief Executive Officer of
Whitestone Contracting Ltd, his predecessor Laurence Hardy and local Fairlie Manager Carey
Edmonston.

The meeting was reconvened at 1.25 pm.

MINUTES
Resolved that the Minutes of the meeting of the Finance Committee held on 23 November

2010 be confirmed and adopted as the correct record of the meeting.
Graeme Page/Evan Williams

MATTERS UNDER ACTION:

Lot 2 Mackenzie Drive, Twizel
The Manager — Finance and Administration reported that the deposit, plus interest, had been
repaid following the Council’s decision to withdraw from the sale of the property.

High Country Health Ltd

Cr Smith reported that the Chairman of High Country Health Ltd had asked for a meeting
regarding the appointment of new trustees to the Mackenzie Medical Trust. He requested
that the issue be included on the Agenda for the next meeting of the Finance Committee.

REPORTS (Continued):

6. FUNDING OF ADDITIONAL AUDIT COSTS:

This report from the Manager — Finance and Administration referred to the cost savings
proposed to cover the anticipated cost overrun in the audit fee for the year ended 30
June 2010.
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Resolved that the report be received and the information noted.
Graeme Page/John Bishop

LATE ITEM:

Resolved that pursuant to the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 the
report “Allocation of Investment Income” be considered.
Graham Smith/Evan Williams

The report was not included on the Agenda because it was not available in time. Consideration of
the report at this meeting was required to enable a technical correction to be made to the Capping of
Investment Income resolution which had been adopted at a previous meeting.

ALLOCATION OF INVESTMENT INCOME:

This report from the Manager — Planning and Regulations sought to delay the introduction to
application of capping investment income to the 2012/2013 year being year 1 of the new Long Term
Plan.

Resolved:

1. That the report be received.

2. That the amendment of the Revenue and Finance Policy and investment policy approved on
14 December 2010 regarding the level of Investment Income offset against rates, be delayed

until the 2012 Long Term Plan.
Graeme Page/Peter Maxwell

IV PUBLIC EXCLUDED:

Resolved that the public be excluded from the following part of the proceedings of this
meeting namely:

Reason for passing Ground(s) under
General subject this resolution in Section 48(1) for
of each matter relation to each the passing of
to be considered matter this resolution
1  Policy for Rental of To enable the Council to carry 48(1)(a)(i)
Medical Centres on negotiations

This resolution is made in reliance on Section 48(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by
Section 6 or Section 7 of that Act, which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or
the relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting in public are as follows: Policy for Rental
of Medical Centres section 7(2)(i).

Evan Williams/Annette Money

The Committee continued in Open Meeting
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THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS THE
CHAIRMAN DECLARED THE MEETING CLOSED AT 2.45 PM

CHAIRMAN:

DATE:
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MATTERS UNDER ACTION - FINANCE COMMITTEE

MANAGER - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

7 May 2010

Reserve 3587

That Council approves entering into a lease for Reserve 3587 to its being on a ‘no cost to Council’
basis and final Council approval Abandoned.

6 August 2010
Medical Facilities — Sale of Doctors’ Residences
Prepare a report with options for funding to support medical facilities in the District

Tekapo Property Matters
Investigate opportunities to market VC1 and VC2 sites and investigate potential corridor for access to
lake frontage land. Ongoing

Twizel Land Sale

Withdraw from the sale of that piece of land forming part of the property at on Mackenzie Drive,
Twizel on the grounds that costs of complying with the subdivisional consent are not acceptable.
Completed.

1 February 2011

Transfund Income

The Manager — Finance and Administration undertook to show income from Transfund separately in
the report. This will be action in the next Financial Report

COMMUNITY FACILITIES MANAGER

Mackenzie Retirement Villas Carports — Unbudgeted Expenditure:

e That Council approves unbudgeted expenditure of approximately $3,442.00 being the cost of GST
and resource consent fees for the carports at the Mackenzie Retirement Villas.

e That the Fairlie Lions be requested to fund the balance of the unbudgeted expenditure, viz
$2,480.00 The request has been submitted to the Fairlie Lions Club.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

13 September 2010

Negotiate with counterpart at the Waitaki District Council to clarify the proportion of individual
financial liability for the Waitaki District Council and the Mackenzie District Council with regard to
the $2.75m construction funding for the Alps to Ocean Cycleway for which both Councils were invited
to be joint signatories of the funding agreement with the Crown. A draft agreement has been prepared
for discussion with Waitaki Chief Executive Officer.
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MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE
SUBJECT: FINANCIAL REPORT - JANUARY 2011

MEETING DATE: 1 MARCH 2011

REF: FIN 1/2/1
FROM: MANAGER - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
ENDORSED: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURPOSE OF REPORT:

Attached is the financial report for Council for the period to January 2011.

Commentary has been provided for any significant variances.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the report be received.

PAUL MORRIS GLEN INNES
MANAGER - FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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GOVERNANCE ACTIVITY

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011

12

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure

Labour 28,075 37,735 31,703 6,032 X 1 54,352 54,352 0

Members Costs 108,094 135,550 119,019 16,531 X 2 206,599 206,599 0

Administration 26,792 21,640 24,129 2,489 38,360 38,360 0

Capital Reserve Interest Paid 188 132 196 64 333 333 0]

Council Staff Support Costs 246,687 246,827 246,827 0 423,111 423,111 0
Total Operating Expenditure 409,835 441,884 421,874 20,010 722,755 722,755 0
Operating Revenue

Total Rates 409,835 441,875 421,624 20,251 X 722,755 722,755 0
Total Operating Revenue 409,835 441,884 421,624 20,260 722,755 722,755 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 (250) 0 0

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (7,244) (5,617) (5,617) (5,617) (5,617)
Capital Expenditure
Total Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Revenue

Total Rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CLOSING BALANCE (7,244) (5,617) (5,617) (5,617) (5,617)

Variance Analysis

1. Includes costs of $7,090 wages and Salaries relating to Local Body elections

2. Includes $18,278 costs for the Local body elections. These costs are funded by $5,000 in this years budget and $28,000 from Reserves set aside for this purpose in prior

years.




WATER ACTIVITY
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (36,182) (34,119) (34,119) (34,119) (34,119)
Operating Expenditure

Consultancy 2,515 7,060 29,526 22,466 V 1 39,606 39,606 0

Administration 4,822 5,632 4,177 1,455 X 7,435 7,435 0

Capital Reserve Interest Paid 38,971 22,086 37,289 15203 V 2 63,915 63,915 0

General Maintenance 163,913 159,608 180,070 20,462 V 3 314,001 314,001 0

Council Staff Support Costs 68,089 67,046 67,046 0 114,942 114,942 0
Total Operating Expenditure 278,311 261,432 318,108 56,676 539,899 539,899 0
Operating Revenue

Total Rates 248,691 236,292 305,984 69,692 441,865 441,865 0

Other Income 23,853 18,265 12,075 6,190 97,785 97,785 0
Total Operating Revenue 272,544 254,557 318,059 63,502 539,650 539,650 0
CLOSING BALANCE (41,949) (40,994) (34,168) (34,368) (34,368)

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (420,833) 113,533 113,533 113,533 113,533
Capital Expenditure

Fairlie 3,695 37,900 61,272 23,372 629,816 629,816 0

Tekapo 0 4,774 32,020 27,246 34,122 34,122 0

Twizel 23,081 8,938 60,249 51,311 106,998 106,998 0

Rural 22,877 17,403 15,000 2,403 X 15,000 15,000 0

Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 0 0 48,098 48,098 0
Total Capital Expenditure 49,653 69,016 168,541 99,525 834,034 834,034 0
Capital Revenue

Total Rates 172,041 181,770 161,256 20,514 X 4 281,119 281,119 0

Capital Reserve Interest Received 22,472 17,348 11,900 5,448 (29,596) (29,596) 0

Financial Contributions 23,300 5,902 5,686 216 5,034 5,034 0

Upgrade Contributions 0 0 0 0 42,344 42,344 0

Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 0 0 48,098 48,098 0

Rural 6,773 (0) 0 0 X 15,000 15,000 0
Total Capital Revenue 224,586 205,020 178,842 26,178 361,999 361,999 0
CLOSING BALANCE (245,900) 249,537 123,834 (358,502) (358,502)

Variance Analysis
Lower than anticipated asset valuation costs have produced this varaince. It is expected that as the valuation is completed the cost of consultancy will met budget

1.

2

expectations.

Capital Reserve Interest down on budget for Fairlie ($9,278) and Allandale ($2,722) due to budgeted interest being calculated on the average estimated balance of

the Capital Reserve ($654,280) compared to actual of $391,726

General Maintenace shows a favourable variance of $20,462 made up of lower Contractor costs for Fairlie $7,074 due to lower than anticipated breakages along with
$3,267 favourable varaince for Twizel power costs as well as lower than anticipated Maintenance costs ($1,967). Allandale and Ashwick schemes ($1,294 and $5,200

respectively)

Fairlie Water scheme transfers its profits to its Capital reserve. YTD operating profit was ahead of budget by $20,514 which has created this positive variance
The level of surplus will ultimately depend on the level of maintenance required to be undertaken for the year.
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SEWERAGE ACTIVITY \
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure
Administration 3,406 2,830 3,164 334 5,408 5,408 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 26,242 16,680 18,440 1,760 19,946 31,613 11,667
General Maintenance 76,146 67,898 63,495 4,403 X 112,062 112,062 0
Council Staff Support Costs 52,416 51,520 51,527 7 N 88,329 88,329 0
Total Operating Expenditure 158,210 143,954 149,680 5,726 238,799 250,466 11,667
Operating Revenue
Total Rates 158,210 143,954 149,680 5726 238,799 250,466 11,667
Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Operating Revenue 158,210 143,954 149,680 5,726 238,799 250,466 11,667
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (963,465) (82,805) (82,805) (82,805) (82,805)
Capital Expenditure
Fairlie 0 162,340 165,000 2,660 V 165,000 165,000 0
Tekapo 0 10,491 17,000 6,509 12,000 12,000 0
Twizel 53,720 35,840 23,000 12,840 X 150,000 150,000 0
Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 0 64,140 64,140 0
Total Capital Expenditure 53,720 208,672 205,000 3,672 391,140 391,140 0
Capital Revenue
Total Rates 124,045 129,373 132,161 2,788 228,128 228,128 0
Capital Reserve Interest Received 14,887 11,948 8,995 2,953 15,424 15,424 0
Financial Contributions 49,249 3,084 3,303 219 X 32,903 32,903 0
Upgrade Contributions 0 0 0 0 24,082 24,082 0
Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 0 0 64,140 64,140 0
Total Capital Revenue 188,180] 144,405 144,459 54 364,677 364,677 0
CLOSING BALANCE (829,005)] (147,072) (143,346) (109,268) (109,268)

Variance Analysis
No significant variances from budget.
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STORMWATER ACTIVITY \
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure
Consultancy 0 1,915 12,432 10,517 V1 12,434 12,434 o v
Administration 838 663 567 96 X 976 976 0
General Maintenance 5,241 5,247 7,581 2,334 12,995 12,995 0
Council Staff Support Costs 13,713 13,503 13,503 0 23,137 23,137 0
Total Operating Expenditure 19,792 21,327 34,083 12,756 49,542 49,542 0
Operating Revenue
Total Rates 13,293 16,313 29,785 13,472 42,188 42,188 0
Capital Reserve Interest Received 6,499 5,014 4,298 716 7,354 7,354 0
Total Operating Revenue 19,792 21,327 34,083 12,756 49,542 49,542 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 235,053 308,184 308,183 308,183 308,183
Capital Expenditure
Fairlie 0 0 6,000 6,000 10,000 10,000 0
Tekapo 0 0 6,000 6,000 10,000 10,000 0
Twizel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 0 38,514 38,514
Total Capital Expenditure 0 0 12,000 12,000 58,514 58,514 0
Capital Revenue
Total Rates 33,208 34,566 34,566 0 59,257 59,257 0
Financial Contributions 1,196 1,445 0 1,445 0 0 0
Upgrade Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 0 0 38,514 38,514 0
Total Capital Revenue 34,404 36,011 34,566 1,445 97,771 97,771 0
CLOSING BALANCE 269,457 344,195 330,749 347,440 347,440

Variance Analysis
1. Lower than anticipated YTD valuation costs of infrastructure assets has contributed significantly ($10,245) to the overall varaince of $10,517
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ROADING ACTIVITY \/
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (108,688) (48,834) (48,834) (48,834) (48,834)
Operating Expenditure
Labour 56,855 60,738 62,818 2,080 107,693 107,693 0
Consultancy 15,477 22,872 28,000 5128 48,000 48,000 0
Administration 2,263 2,969 2,499 470 X 4,273 4,273 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 500 (40) 721 761 1,235 1,235 0
General Maintenance 7,845 16,385 6,741 9,644 X 11,553 11,553 0
Roading 628,216 626,812 726,390 99,578 1,264,784 1,264,784 0
Council Staff Support Costs 162,470 174,412 174,412 0 298,987 298,987 0
Total Operating Expenditure 873,626 904,147 1,001,581 97,434 1,736,525 1,736,525 0
Operating Revenue
Fairlie Works & Services Rates 32,276 29,459 25,404 4,055 X 61,535 61,535 0
Tekapo Works & Services Rates 34,131 27,838 24,758 3,079 X 65,874 65,874 0
Twizel Works & Services Rates 42,862 39,824 15,833 23,991 X 91,252 91,252 0
Rural Works & Services Rates 301,559 267,794 151,815 115979 X 473,802 473,802 0
Total Rates 410,827 364,914 217,810 147,104 X 692,463 692,463 0
Other Income 425,746 484,397 715,521 231,123 X 927,073 927,073 0
Council Staff Support Income 63,249 75,250 75,250 0 128,992 128,992 0
Total Operating Revenue 899,822 924,562 1,008,581 84,019 1,748,528 1,748,528 0
CLOSING BALANCE (82,492) (28,420) (41,834) (36,831) (36,831)
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note|
OPENING BALANCE 897,019 760,195 760,195 760,195 760,195
Capital Expenditure
Fairlie 250 3,338 8,414 5,076 56,549 56,549 0
Tekapo 0 3,730 38,024 34,294 126,286 126,286 0
Twizel 0 11,476 51,912 40,436 236,995 236,995 0
Rural 226,515 147,392 326,354 178,962 954,924 954,924 0
Professional Services Business Unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Expenditure 226,765 165,937 424,704 258,767 1,374,754 1,374,754 0
Capital Revenue
Fairlie Works & Services Rates 108 1,536 3,870 2335 34,372 34,372 0
Tekapo Works & Services Rates 0 1,716 831 885 X 40,330 40,330 0
Twizel Works & Services Rates 0 5,279 554 4,725 X 96,165 96,165 0
Rural Works & Services Rates 97,402 67,800 150,123 82,322 439,265 439,265 0
Total Rates 97,509 76,331 155,378 79,047 610,132 610,132 0
Council Staff Support Income 745 707 707 0 1,215 1,215 0
Fairlie 143 1,803 4,544 2,741 22,177 22,177 0
Tekapo 0 2,014 37,198 35,179 85,956 85,956 0
Twizel 2,191 7,007 52,233 45226 142,336 142,336 0
Rural 174,195 95,731 186,185 90,454 532,727 532,727 0
Professional Services Business Unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Revenue 274,782 183,593 436,240 252,647 1,394,543 1,394,543 0
CLOSING BALANCE 945,036 777,851 771,731 779,984 779,984
Variances

Varainces will be discussed at the meeting
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ROADING ACTIVITY
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (108,688) (48,834) (48,834) (48,834) (48,834)
Operating Expenditure

Fairlie Roading

Subsidised 34,738 38,260 48,531 10,271 86,792 86,792 0

Unsubsidised 9,733 10,189 10,311 122 17,676 17,676 0

Tekapo Roading

Subsidised 42,978 33,843 53,935 20,092 V 97,085 97,085 0

Unsubsidised 10,464 11,403 11,046 357 X 18,935 18,935 0

Twizel Roading

Subsidised 53,723 47,711 63,161 15,450 119,610 119,610 0

Unsubsidised 18,300 18,204 20,902 2,608 35,824 35,824 0

Rural Roading

Subsidised 531,622 549,621 601,069 51,448 1,030,397 1,030,397 0

Unsubsidised 61,082 62,664 62,664 0 107,433 107,433 0

Professional Roading Business Unit 110,986 132,252 129,962 2,290 X 222,773 222,773 0
Total Operating Expenditure 873,626 904,147 1,001,581 97,434 1,736,525 1,736,525 0
Operating Revenue

Fairlie Works & Services Rates 32,276 29,459 25,404 4,055 X 61,535 61,535 0

Tekapo Works & Services Rates 34,131 27,838 24,758 3,079 X 65,874 65,874 0

Twizel Works & Services Rates 42,862 39,824 15,833 23,991 X 91,252 91,252 0

Rural Works and Services Rates 301,559 267,794 151,815 115979 X 473,802 473,802 0

Other Income 425,746 484,397 715,521 231,123 X 927,073 927,073 0

Professional Roading Business Unit 63,249 75,250 75,250 0 128,992 128,992 0
Total Operating Revenue 899,822 924,562 1,008,581 84,019 1,748,528 1,748,528 0
CLOSING BALANCE (82,492) (28,420) (41,834) (36,831) (36,831)

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 897,019 761,857 761,857 761,857 761,857
Capital Expenditure

Fairlie

Subsidised 250 3,338 8,414 5076 41,069 41,069 0

Unsubsidised 0 0 0 0 15,480 15,480 0

Tekapo

Subsidised 0 3,730 1,806 1,924 X 44,195 44,195 0

Unsubsidised 0 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 0

Twizel

Subsidised 0 11,476 1,204 10,272 X 99,820 99,820 0

Unsubsidised 0 0 0 0 50,248 50,248 0

Rural

Subsidised 226,515 147,392 326,354 178,962 954,924 954,924 0

Unsubsidised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Assets Vested from Developers 0 0 86,926 86,926 149,018 149,018 0

Professional Services Business Unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Expenditure 226,765 165,937 424,704 258,767 1,374,754 1,374,754 0
Capital Revenue

Fairlie Works & Services Rates 108 1,536 3,870 2,335 34,372 34,372 0

Tekapo Works & Services Rates 0 1,716 831 885 X 40,330 40,330 0

Twizel Works & Services Rates 0 5,279 554 4,725 X 96,165 96,165 0

Rural Works and Services Rates 97,402 67,800 150,123 82,322 439,265 439,265 0

Capital Reserve Interest Received 19,696 16,949 10,829 6,120 18,574 18,574 0

Financial Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Upgrade Contributions 27,576 0 0 0 0 0 0

Assets Vested from Developers 0 0 86,926 86,926 X 149,018 149,018 0

Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

LTNZ Subsidies 129,256 89,606 182,400 92,794 X 615,604 615,604 0

Council Staff Support Income 745 707 707 0 1,215 1,215 0
Total Capital Revenue 274,782 183,593 436,240 252,647 1,394,543 1,394,543 0

945,036 779,514 773,393 781,646 781,646
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FAIRLIE ROADING \/
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 1] 0
Operating Expenditure
Interest on Capital Reserves 3) (40) 105 145 < 178 178 0
Roading
Subsidised
Drainage Mtce - St Cleaning 9,735 4,355 14,875 10,520 25,500 25,500 0
Drain Mtce - St Clean - Transi 7,286 7,371 7,042 329 X 12,076 12,076 0
Traffic Sves Mtce - Pav Mkings 0 0 0 0 3,600 3,600 0
St Lighting - Elec 2,806 2,719 3,892 1,173 6,670 6,670 0
St Lighting - Elec - Transit 2,959 2,848 2,996 148 5,130 5,130 0
St Lighting - Mtce 2,529 1,456 3,850 2,394 6,600 6,600 0
St Lighting - Mtce - Transit 2,632 9,047 2,345 6,702 X 4,017 4,017 0
Sealed Pavement Mtce 2,855 1,749 3,416 1,667 5,850 5,850 0
Unsealed Pavement Mice 1,682 1,192 602 590 X 1,032 1,032 0
Routine Drainage Mtce 216 1,068 756 312 X 1,300 1,300 0
Environ Mtce - Snow & Ice Cont 0 4,552 1,827 2,725 X 3,127 3,127 0
Enviro Mtce - Vegetation Contr 651 0 777 777 A 1,333 1,333 0
Enviro Mtce - Other 0 108 777 669 1,334 1,334 0
Traffic Sves Mtce - Signs EMPs 0 91 231 140 400 400 0
Network & Asset Management 0 0 3,500 3,500 6,001 6,001 0
Total Subsidised 33,352 36,615 46,886 10,271 83,970 83,970 0
Unsubsidised
Fairlie Footpaths 4,129 4,448 4,424 24 X 7,585 7,585 0
Total Unsubsidised 4,129 4,448 4,424 24 X 7,685 7,585 0
Total Direct Roading Costs 37,481 41,062 51,310 10,248 91,555 91,555 0
Council Staff Support Costs
Charges - Roading Prof Svcs 1,386 1,645 1,645 0 2,822 2,822 0
Charges - Roading Prof Svcs 994 1,183 1,183 0 2,027 2,027 0
Professional Roading Services 2,380 2,828 2,828 4,849 4,849
Charges - Admin District 2,408 2,436 2,436 0 4,181 4,181 0
Charges - Asset Management 2,205 2,163 2,163 0 3,705 3,705 0
Total Council Staff Support Costs 6,993 7,427 7,427 0 12,735 12,735 0
Total Operating Expenditure 44,471 48,449 58,842 10,393 104,468 104,468 0
Operating Revenue
Fairlie Works & Services Rates 32,276 29,459 25,404 4,055 X 61,535 61,535 0
Other Income
Transit-Street Lights & Clean 0 1,896 5,334 3,438 X 9,147 9,147 0
NZTA Operational Subsidy 7,369 12,176 23,680 11,505 X 26,201 26,201 0
Petroleum Tax 4,826 4,918 4,424 494 7,585 7,585 0
Total Other Income 12,195 18,990 33,438 14,449 X 42,933 42,933 0
Council Staff Support Income 0 0
Total Operating Revenue 44,471 48,449 58,842 10,393 104,468 104,468 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (41,745) 6,011 6,011 6,011 6,011
Capital Expenditure
Subsidised Capital
Traffic Svs Renewal - Signs EMP 250 3,338 8,414 5076 14,429 14,429 0
Sealed Road Resurfacing 0 0 0 0 26,640 26,640 0
Total Subsidised Capital 250 3,338 8,414 5,076 41,069 41,069 0
Unsubsidised Capital
Vested Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Footpaths - Surfacing 0 0 0 0 15,480 15,480 0
Total Unsubsidised 0 0 0 0 15,480 15,480 0
Total Capital Expenditure 250 3,338 8,414 5,076 56,549 56,549 0
Capital Revenue
Fairlie Works & Services Rates 108 1,536 3,870 2,335 34,372 34,372 0
Vested Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NZTA Subsidies 143 1,803 4,544 2,741 X 22,177 22,177 0
Total Capital Revenue 250 3,338 8,414 5,076 56,549 56,549 0
CLOSING BALANCE (41,745) 6,011 6,011 6,011 6,011

Variance Analysis
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TEKAPO ROADING
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 1] 0
Operating Expenditure
Interest on Capital Reserve 502 0 0 0 0 0 0
Roading
Subsidised
Drain Mtce - St Clean 8,776 4,602 9,163 4561 15,705 15,705 0
Drain Mtce - St Clean - Transi 4,738 4,236 5,733 1,497 9,825 9,825 0
Traffic Sves Mtce - Pav Mkings 0 0 0 0 4,644 4,644 0
Street Lighting - Electricity 4,912 4,584 4,669 85 8,000 8,000 0
St Lighting - Elec - Transit 607 567 798 231 1,372 1,372 0
Street Lighting - Maintenance 13,992 5,084 14,000 8,916 24,000 24,000 0
St Lighting - Mtce - Transit 1,729 625 2,380 1,755 4,079 4,079 0
Sealed Pavement Mtce 3,292 2,258 2,786 528 4,771 4,771 0
Unsealed Pavement Maintenance 1,299 892 0 892 X 0 0 0
Drainage Mtce - Other 1,460 642 924 282 1,590 1,590 0
Environmental Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Enviro Mtce - Snow & Ice Contr 495 7,852 2,135 5717 X 3,657 3,657 0
Enviro Mtce - Vegetation Contr 502 618 3,794 3,176 6,500 6,500 0
Enviro Mtce - Other 0 343 3,745 3,402 6,416 6,416 0
Traffic Sves Mtce - Signs EMPs 0 140 301 161 516 516 0
Network & Asset Management 0 0 2,107 2,107 3,612 3,612 0
Total Subsidised 41,802 32,443 52,535 20,092 94,687 94,687 0
Unsubsidised
Tekapo Footpaths 3,529 4,466 3,794 672 X 6,502 6,502 0
New Year Road Sweep 0 0 315 315 542 542 0
Total Unsubsidised 3,529 4,466 4,109 357 X 7,044 7,044 0
Total Direct Roading Costs 45,331 36,909 56,644 19,735 101,731 101,731 0
Council Staff Support Costs
Charges - Roading Prof Svcs 1,176 1,400 1,400 0 2,398 2,398 0
Charges - Roading Prof Svcs 2,835 3,367 3,367 0 5,768 5,768 0
Professional Roading Services 4,011 4,767 4,767 8,166 8,166
Charges - Asset Management 2,282 2,233 2,233 0 3,834 3,834 0
Charges - Admin District 1,316 1,337 1,337 0 2,289 2,289 0
Total Council Staff Support Costs 7,609 8,337 8,337 0 14,289 14,289 0
Total Operating Expenditure 53,442 45,246 64,981 19,735 116,020 116,020 0
Operating Revenue
Tekapo Works & Services Rates 34,131 27,838 24,758 3,079 X 65,874 65,874 0
Other Income
Transit-Street Lights & Clean 0 1,191 1,200 9 X 5,451 5,451 0
NZTA Operational Subsidy 15,168 12,300 35,425 23,125 X 38,537 38,537 0
Petroleum Tax 3,533 3,600 2,709 891 4,639 4,639 0
Interest Earned on Capital Rsv 610 317 889 572 X 1,519 1,519 0
Total Other Income 19,312 17,408 40,223 22,814 X 50,146 50,146 0
Total Operating Revenue 53,442 45,246 64,981 19,735 116,020 116,020 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Variance Variance
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 6,876 18,815 18,815 18,815 18,815
Capital Expenditure
Subsidised Capital
Traffic Svs Renewal - St Light 0 3,730 1,204 2526 X 1 2,064 2,064 0
Signs 0 0 602 602 1,032 1,032 0
Reseals 0 0 0 0 41,099 41,099 0
Total Subsidised Capital 0 3,730 1,806 1,924 X 44,195 44,195 0
Unsubsidised Capital
Vested Assets 0 0 36,218 36,218 62,091 62,091 0
Footpaths - Surfacing 0 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 0
Pioneer Drive Upgrade 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Unsubsidised 0 0 36,218 36,218 82,091 82,091 0
Total Capital Expenditure 0 3,730 38,024 34,294 126,286 126,286 0
Capital Revenue
Tekapo Works & Services Rates 0 1,716 831 885 X 40,330 40,330 0
Vested Assets 0 0 36,218 36,218 X 62,091 62,091 0
NZTA Subsidy 0 2,014 975 1,039 V 23,865 23,865 0
0 3,730 38,024 34,294 126,286 126,286 0
6,876 18,815 18,815 18,815 18,815

Variance Analysis
1. Unbudgeted carry forward from 2009/2010 year
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TWIZEL ROADING
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure
Interest on Capital Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Roading
Subsidised
Drainage Mtce - St Cleaning 16,358 14,075 18,060 3,985 30,960 30,960 0
Traffic Sves Mtce - Pav Mkings 0 0 0 0 11,352 11,352 0
St Lighting - Electricity 12,358 12,281 12,999 718 22,280 22,280 0
St Lighting - Elec - Transit 77 72 84 12 144 144 0
Street Lighting - Maintenance 10,411 8,878 12,131 3,253 20,800 20,800 0
St Lighting - Mtce - Transit 105 90 420 330 722 722 0
Sealed Pavement Mtce 6,054 2,492 9,226 6,735 15,813 15,813 0
Unsealed Pavement Maintenance 1,515 2,018 602 1,416 X 1,032 1,032 0
Routine Drainage Mtce 1,635 719 1,169 450 2,002 2,002 0
Environmental Maintenance 386 0 0 0 0 0 0
Enviro Mtce - Snow & Ice Contr 0 2,067 805 1,262 X 1,376 1,376 0
Enviro Mtce - Vegetation Contr 1,166 333 805 473 1,376 1,376 0
Enviro Mtce - Other 343 530 805 275 1,376 1,376 0
Traffic Sves Mtce - Signs EMPs 38 273 364 91 619 619 0
Network & Asset Management 0 0 1,806 1,806 3,096 3,096 0
Total Subsidised 50,447 43,826 59,276 15,450 112,948 112,948 0
Unsubsidised
Twizel Footpaths 5,042 4,890 7,588 2,698 13,003 13,003 0
Total Unsubsidised 5,042 4,890 7,588 2,608 13,003 13,003 0
Total Direct Roading Costs 55,489 48,716 66,864 18,148 125,951 125,951 0
Council Staff Support Costs
Charges - Roading Prof Svcs 3,276 3,885 3,885 0 6,662 6,662 0
Charges - Roading Prof Svcs 1,099 1,309 1,309 0 2,239 2,239 0
Professional Roading Services 4,375 5,194 5,194 0 8,901 8,901 0
Charges - Asset Management 9,359 9,170 9,170 0 15,719 15,719 0
Charges - Admin District 2,800 2,835 2,835 0 4,863 4,863 0
Total Council Staff Support Costs 16,534 17,199 17,199 0 29,483 29,483 0
Total Operating Expenditure 72,023 65,915 84,063 18,148 155,434 155,434 0
Operating Revenue
Twizel Works & Services Rates 42,862 39,824 15,833 23,991 X 91,252 91,252
Other Income
Transit-Street Lights & Clean 0 162 504 342 X 866 866 0
NZTA Operational Subsidy 20,959 17,572 59,270 41,698 X 48,822 48,822 0
Petroleum Tax 8,202 8,358 8,456 98 X 14,494 14,494 0
Total Other Income 29,161 26,091 68,230 42,139 X 64,182 64,182 0
Total Operating Revenue 72,023 65,915 84,063 18,148 155,434 155,434 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Variance Variance
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 82,969 63,487 63,487 63,487 63,487
Capital Expenditure
Subsidised Capital
Signs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reseals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Traffic Svs Renwl - Signs EMP 0 11,476 1,204 10,272 X 1 2,064 2,064 0
Sealed Road Resurfacing 0 0 0 0 97,756 97,756 0
Total Subsidised Capital 0 11,476 1,204 10,272 X 99,820 99,820 0
Unsubsidised Capital
Footpaths - Surfacing 0 0 0 0 50,248 50,248 0
Vested Assets 0 0 50,708 50,708 86,927 86,927 0
Total Unsubsidised 0 0 50,708 50,708 137,175 137,175 0
Total Capital Expenditure 0 11,476 51,912 40,436 236,995 236,995 0
Capital Revenue
Twizel Works & Services Rates 0 5,279 554 4,725 X 96,165 96,165 0
Vested Assets 0 0 50,708 50,708 X 86,927 86,927 0
NZTA Subsidy 0 6,197 650 5547 53,903 53,903 0 2
0 11,476 51,912 40,436 236,995 236,995 0
82,969 63,487 63,487 63,487 63,487

Variance Analysis
1. Unbudgeted carry forward from 2009/2010 year
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ROADING - RURAL
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 1] 0
Operating Expenditure
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Roading
Subsidised
Struct Mtce - Bridges 51,559 24,976 51,275 26,299 87,896 87,896 0
Struct Mtce - Cattle Stops 13,389 4,164 13,244 9,080 22,704 22,704 0
St Lighting - Electricity 267 259 476 217 821 821 0
St Lighting - Elec - Transit 648 647 1,274 627 2,186 2,186 0
St Lighting - Mtce 916 538 1,806 1,268 3,096 3,096 0
St Lighting - Mtce - Transit 1,946 1,144 3,612 2,468 6,192 6,192 0
Sealed Pavement Mtce 71,590 94,142 58,023 36,119 X 99,470 99,470 0
Unsealed Pavement Mtce 183,179 241,733 299,817 58,084 513,966 513,966 0
Drainage Mtce - Other 50,677 28,032 59,591 31,559 102,160 102,160 0
Enviro Mtce - Snow & Ice Contr 18,643 16,805 0 16,805 X 0 0 0
Enviro Mtce - Vegetation Contr 35,272 44,071 20,419 23,652 X 35,000 35,000 0
Enviro Mtce - Other 24,801 23,142 15,596 7,546 X 26,736 26,736 0
Traffic Sves Mtce - Signs EMPs 24,156 20,303 20,419 116 35,000 35,000 0
Emergency reinstatement 12,874 0 0 0 0 0 0
Network and Asset Management 0 0 6,020 6,020 10,320 10,320 0
Total Subsidised Roading 489,916 500,124 551,572 51,448 945,547 945,547 0
Internal Charges
Professional Roading Business Unit 53,228 63,168 63,168 0 108,291 108,291 0
Charges - Asset Management 36,792 36,043 36,043 0 61,794 61,794 0
Charges - Admin District 12,768 12,950 12,950 0 22,198 22,198 0
Total Internal Charges 102,788 112,161 112,161 0 192,283 192,283 0
Total Operating Expenditure 592,704 612,285 663,733 51,448 1,137,830 1,137,830 0
Operating Revenue
Rural Works & Services Rates 301,559 267,794 151,815 115979 X 473,802 473,802 0
Other Income
Transit-Street Lights & Clean 0 1,791 4,886 3,095 X 8,378 8,378 0
Other Income (82) 0 22,673 22,673 X 38,870 38,870 0
NZTA Operating Subsidy 258,738 310,799 459,747 148,948 X 574,588 574,588 0
Petroleum Tax 14,984 15,270 14,658 612 25,124 25,124 0
Other Income 0 492 0 492 0 0 0
Capital Reserve Interest 17,505 16,139 9,954 6,185 17,068 17,068 0
Other Income 291,145 344,492 511,918 167,426 X 664,028 664,028 0
Total Operating Revenue 592,704 612,285 663,733 51,448 1,137,830 1,137,830 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 846,946 667,349 667,349 667,349 667,349
Capital Expenditure
Subsidised
Unsealed Road Metalling 156,366 48,251 154,840 106,589 279,840 279,840 0
Pavement rehabilitation 0 44,601 110,719 66,118 189,800 189,800 0
Struc Com Repl - Bridges Cstop 1,379 3,529 0 3,529 X 14,448 14,448 0
Drainage Renewals - Culverts 10,416 8,630 0 8,630 X 0 0 0
Traffic Svs Renwl - Signs EMPs 47,709 21,844 0 21,844 X 1 0 0 0
Associated improvements 0 0 2,408 2,408 4,128 4,128 0
Minor Improvements 9,148 0 0 0 183,000 183,000 0
Reseals 1,497 106 0 106 X 183,624 183,624 0
Total Subsidised 226,515 147,392 326,354 178,962 954,924 954,924 0
Unsubsidised
Sealing Past Houses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Unsubsidised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Expenditure 226,515 147,392 326,354 178,962 954,924 954,924 0
Capital Revenue
Rural Works & Services Rates 97,402 67,800 150,123 82,322 439,265 439,265 0
Upgrade Contributions 27,576 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Reserve Interest Received 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NZTA Subsidies 129,114 79,592 176,231 96,639 X 515,659 515,659 0
Total Capital Revenue 254,092 147,392 326,354 178,962 954,924 954,924 0
CLOSING BALANCE 874,522 667,349 667,349 667,349 667,349

Variance Analysis
1. Unbudgeted carry forward from 2009/2010 year
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ROADING - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BUSINESS UNIT
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (108,688) (48,834) (48,834) (48,834) (48,834)
Operating Expenditure
Labour 56,855 60,738 62,818 2,080 107,693 107,693 0
Consultancy 0 0
RAMM 2,394 17,123 17,500 377 30,000 30,000 0
Legal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Consultancy Services 13,083 5,750 10,500 4,750 18,000 18,000 0
Total Consultancy 15,477 22,872 28,000 5128 48,000 48,000 0
Administration
Advertising 930 1,005 483 522 X 829 829 0
Tools & Equipment 69 276 322 46 550 550 0
Insurance 1,096 1,633 644 889 X 1,100 1,100 0
Other Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Publications & Legislation 0 0 203 203 343 343 0
Subscriptions 0 0 546 546 932 932 0
Tolls & Rentals 169 155 301 146 519 519 0
Total Administration 2,263 2,969 2,499 470 X 4,273 4,273 0
Capital Reserve Interest
Interest on Capital Reserve 0 0 616 616 1,057 1,057 0
Total Capital Reserve Interest 0 0 616 616 1,057 1,057 0
General Maintenance
Vehicle Expenses 7,845 16,385 6,741 9,644 X 11,553 11,553 0
General Maintenance 7,845 16,385 6,741 9,644 X 11,553 11,553 0
Council Support Costs 0 0
Charges - Admin District 15,687 16,072 16,072 0 27,546 27,546 0
Charges - Council Bldg Fairlie 1,960 1,974 1,974 0 3,380 3,380 0
Charges - CEO Department 5,341 5,285 5,285 0 9,065 9,065 0
Charges - Info Tech Support 5,558 5,957 5,957 0 10,206 10,206 0
Council Staff Support Costs 28,546 29,288 29,288 0 50,197 50,197 0
Total Operating Expenditure 110,986 132,252 129,962 2,290 222,773 222,773 0
Operating Revenue
Transfund New Zealand 73,633 77,316 60,501 16,815 103,712 103,712 0
Other Income 300 100 1,211 1,111 X 2,072 2,072 0
Total Other Income 73,933 77,416 61,712 15,704 105,784 105,784 0
Council Staff Support Income
Income - Fairlie Subs Roading 1,386 1,645 1,645 0 2,822 2,822 0
Income - Tekapo Subs Roading 1,176 1,400 1,400 0 2,398 2,398 0
Income - Twizel Subs Roading 3,276 3,885 3,885 0 6,662 6,662 0
Income - Rural Subs Roading 41,706 49,497 49,497 0 84,850 84,850 0
Income - Fairlie Unsub Roading 994 1,183 1,183 0 2,027 2,027 0
Income - Tekapo Unsub Roading 2,835 3,367 3,367 0 5,768 5,768 0
Income - Twizel Unsub Roading 1,099 1,309 1,309 0 2,239 2,239 0
Income - Rural Unsub Roading 11,522 13,671 13,671 0 23,441 23,441 0
Transfer to Capital Reserve (745) (707) (707) 0 (1,215) (1,215) 0
Total Council Staff Support Income 63,249 75,250 75,250 0 128,992 128,992 0
Total Operating Revenue 137,182 152,666 136,962 15,704 234,776 234,776 0
CLOSING BALANCE (82,492) (28,420) (41,834) (36,831) (36,831)
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Variance Note|
OPENING BALANCE 1,973 6,195 6,195 6,195 6,195
Capital Expenditure
Plant & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Revenue
Council Staff Support Income 745 707 707 0 1,215 1,215 0
Total Capital Revenue 745 707 707 0 1,215 1,215 0
CLOSING BALANCE 2,718 6,902 6,902 7,410 7,410

Variance Analysis
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Actual Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 21,619 (38,869) (38,869) (38,869) (38,869)
Operating Expenditure
Labour 152,122 130,635 144,641 14,006 247,952 247,952 0
Members Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Consultancy 3,118 3,321 833 2,488 X 4,124 4,124 0
Administration 7,307 6,122 8,008 1,886 13,711 13,711 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 20,485 12,810 17,584 4,774 30,164 30,164 0
General Maintenance 296,076 279,644 308,299 28,655 \ 1 533,833 533,833 0
Council Staff Support Costs 222,600 77,728 77,728 0 133,230 133,230 0
Total Operating Expenditure 701,708 510,261 557,093 46,832 963,014 963,014 0
Operating Revenue
Albury Refuse Rates 7,615 7,581 7,581 0 12,992 12,992 0
General Rates 268,897 85,359 215,175 129,817 343,271 343,271 0
Fairlie Refuse Rates 15,011 14,805 14,805 0 25,384 25,384 0
Tekapo Refuse Rates 11,078 9,015 9,023 8 15,469 15,469 0
Twizel Refuse Rates 24,561 23,147 23,156 9 39,698 39,698 0
Rural Works & Services Rates 308 322 322 0 550 550 0
Total Rates 327,470 140,229 270,062 129,834 437,364 437,364 0
Other Income 185,201 202,138 129,881 72,257 N 2 224,282 224,282 0
Council Staff Support Income 197,806 52,493 51,975 518 89,093 89,093 0
Total Operating Revenue 710,477 394,859 451,918 57,059 750,739 750,739 0
CLOSING BALANCE 30,388 (154,270) (144,044) (251,144) (251,144)
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Actual Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (681,151) (624,804) (624,804) (624,804) (624,804)
Capital Expenditure
Resource Recovery Parks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Organic Waste 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Revenue
Total Rates (Funded Depn) 36,939 28,287 28,805 518 49,354 49,354 0
Council Staff Support Income 21 21 539 518 X 924 924 0
Total Capital Revenue 36,960 28,308 29,344 1,036 50,278 50,278 0
CLOSING BALANCE (644,191) (596,496) (595,460) (574,526) (574,526)

Variance Analysis

1. Lower than anticipated consent monitoring costs for Closed Landfills $3,941 coupled with reduced transportation costs ($23,057) for recycling have resulted in a favourable

variance.

2. Other income is up on budget by $72,257 due to higher than anticipated revenue from Sale of recyclable material ($16,655), Higher than anticipated Residual waste gate

fees for Tekapo and Twizel ($20,646 and $25,039 respectively) and higher than anticipated sales of Residual and Recycle bages ($12,374).

SOLID WASTE ACTIVITY

FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2011

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Actual Budget Variance Note,
OPENING BALANCE 21,619 (38,869) (38,869) (38,869) (38,869)
Operating Expenditure by Activity
Management 58,598 56,304 57,113 809 100,596 100,596 0
Refuse Collection 47,626 48,089 52,927 4,838 91,268 91,268 0
Closed Landfills 1,446 3,554 7,067 3513 11,183 11,183 0
Resource Recovery Parks 290,220 139,929 156,772 16,843 268,767 268,767 0
Hardfill Sites 3,706 2,941 5,215 2,274 8,940 8,940 0
Residual Waste 164,910 194,192 167,139 27,053 X 286,500 286,500 0
Recycling 44,503 23,569 47,523 23,954 81,467 81,467 0
Organics 90,700 41,684 63,337 21,653 114,293 114,293 0
Total Operating Expenditure 701,708 510,261 557,093 46,832 963,014 963,014 0
Operating Revenue
Targeted Rates (Townships) 58,266 54,548 54,565 17 93,543 93,543 0
Rural Works and Services 308 322 322 0 550 550 0
General Rates 268,897 85,359 215,175 129,817 343,271 343,271 0
Other Income 185,201 202,138 129,881 72,257 224,282 224,282 0
Internal Council Income 197,806 52,493 51,975 518 89,093 89,093 0
Total Operating Revenue 710,477 394,859 451,918 57,059 750,739 750,739 0
CLOSING BALANCE 30,388 (154,270) (144,044) 10,227 (251,144) (251,144) 0
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure
Labour 76,552 77,272 81,102 3,830 V 139,024 139,024 0
Members Costs 0 0
Consultancy 8,753 0 7,014 7,014 12,031 12,031 0
Administration 25,074 21,397 18,746 2,651 X 3 32,132 32,132 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 9) 5 0 5 X 0 0 0
General Maintenance 7,423 15,607 9,660 5947 X 1 16,557 16,557 0
Council Staff Support Costs 47,831 48,237 48,237 0 82,701 82,701 0
Total Operating Expenditure 165,624 162,518 164,759 2,241 282,445 282,445 0
Operating Revenue
Total Rates 4,609 21,175 59,661 38,486 102,286 102,286 0
Other Income 159,265 139,593 103,348 36,245 V 2 177,159 177,159 0
Council Staff Support Income 1,750 1,750 1,750 0 3,000 3,000 0
Total Operating Revenue 165,624 162,518 164,759 2,241 282,445 282,445 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 2,295 607 607 607 607
Capital Expenditure
Total Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Revenue
General Rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CLOSING BALANCE 2,295 607 607 607 607

Variance Analysis

1. Due to increase in internal charge out of Motor vehicles to 48c per km
2. Increased revenue from Building consent fees
3. Includes $19,250 ytd share of the call from Riskpool. This will be funded from the Special Reserve created in 2009/2010 to cover this expenditure.
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure

Labour 100,678 105,211 108,451 3,240 185,914 185,914 0

Members Costs 0 0

Consultancy 16,210 165,873 9,674 156,199 X 16,576 16,576 0]

Administration 16,745 5,737 8,498 2,761 14,563 14,563 0

Capital Reserve Interest Paid 4,291 5,911 1,806 4,105 X 3,098 3,098 0]

General Maintenance 4,999 10,887 9,660 1,227 X 16,557 16,557 0

Council Staff Support Costs 68,019 69,566 69,566 0 119,263 119,263 0
Total Operating Expenditure 210,942 363,186 207,655 155,531 355,971 355,971 0
Operating Revenue

General Rates 142,996 291,329 145,257 146,072 X 249,008 249,008 0

Other Income 46,955 53,246 45,479 7,767 77,963 77,963 0

Real Estate Account Funding 4,072 1,692 0 1,692 0 0 0

Council Staff Support Income 16,919 16,919 16,919 0 29,000 29,000 0
Total Operating Revenue 210,942 363,186 207,655 155,531 355,971 355,971 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (51,671) (235,944) (235,944) (235,944) (235,944)
Capital Expenditure

Computers 0 0 0 0 v 0 0 0

Plan Change 15 0 8,207 0 8,207 X 65,000 0 65,000 X

Plan Change 13 40,774 144,531 52,500 92,031 X 90,000 90,000 0
Total Capital Expenditure 40,774 152,738 52,500 100,238 155,000 90,000 0
Capital Revenue

General Rates 3,647 77 13,790 13,713 23,636 23,636 0

Transfer Funding from General Res 0 0 0 0 X 0 0 0 X

Subdivision Res Contn Received 12,809 24,682 11,669 13,013 20,000 20,000 0

Subdivision Res Contn Transferred (12,809) (24,682) (11,669) 13,013 X (20,000) (20,000) 0
Total Capital Revenue 3,647 77 13,790 13,713 23,636 23,636 0
CLOSING BALANCE (88,798) (388,605) (274,654) (367,308) (302,308)

Variance Analysis

1. Due to an accounting treatment change Plan Change 13 and 15 cannot now be capiatised. This has incuured an unfavourable variance of $164,097. This now has a
rates impact rather than a funded depreciation impact. The budget for both projects is recorded in the Capital Reserve Account.
2. Due to previous levels of Capitalised Plan Change 13 costs ($235,944)
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure
Labour 11,029 5,921 11,564 5643 \ 1 19,831 19,831 0
Administration 19,540 16,554 15,777 777 X 24,288 24,288 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 2,716 1,496 1,106 390 X 1,890 1,890 0
General Maintenance 84,838 76,908 80,083 3,175 144,778 144,778 0
Council Staff Support Costs 10,983 11,144 11,144 0 19,100 19,100 0
Total Operating Expenditure 129,106 112,023 119,674 7,651 209,887 209,887 0
Operating Revenue
Total Rates 94,965 110,852 98,534 12,318 X 139,347 139,347 0
Other Income 33,715 811 20,566 19,755 X 69,556 69,556 0
Capital Reserve Interest Received 426 360 574 214 X 984 984 0
Total Operating Revenue 129,106 112,023 119,674 7,651 209,887 209,887 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (48,781) (46,338) (46,338) (46,338) (46,338)
Capital Expenditure
Animal Control 0 1,043 644 399 X 7,100 1,100 6,000 X
Rural Fire Control 7,600 4,200 3,626 574 X 6,216 6,216 0
Total Capital Expenditure 7,600 5,243 4,270 973 13,316 7,316 6,000
Capital Revenue
Total Rates 21,833 18,795 18,795 0 32,211 32,211 0
Total Capital Revenue 21,833 18,795 18,795 0 32,211 32,211 0
CLOSING BALANCE (34,548) (32,786) (31,813) (27,443) (21,443)

Variance Analysis
1. Replacement Civil Defence Officer still to be made.
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure

Administration 23,206 18,383 15,888 2,495 X 24,828 24,828 0

Grants 82,158 76,853 73,524 3,329 X 108,012 108,012 0

Capital Reserve Interest Paid 3,398 0 0 0 0] 0 0

General Maintenance 101,413 103,352 118,110 14,758 1 177,816 177,816 0

Council Staff Support Costs 28,560 28,812 28,812 0 49,408 49,408 0
Total Operating Expenditure 238,735 227,400 236,334 8,934 360,064 360,064 0
Operating Revenue

Total Rates 178,178 180,029 150,662 29,367 X 226,528 226,528 0

Building Maintenance Reserve 7,330 13,729 21,254 7,525 X 22,500 22,500 0

Other Income 48,190 32,479 62,157 29,678 X 1 107,159 107,159 0

Capital Reserve Interest Received 5,037 1,163 2,261 1,098 X 3,877 3,877 0
Total Operating Revenue 238,735 227,400 236,334 8,934 360,064 360,064 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (409,516) 73,308 73,308 73,308 73,308
Capital Expenditure

Pensioner Housing 511 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Expenditure 511 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Revenue

Total Rates 12,110 12,621 12,621 0 21,642 21,642 0
Total Capital Revenue 0 12,621 12,621 0 21,642 21,642 0
CLOSING BALANCE (410,027) 85,929 85,929 94,950 94,950

Variance Analysis
1. Lower than anticipated revenue associated with cemeteries has also resulted in lower than anticipated costs from that source
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 2,053 1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654
Operating Expenditure
Labour 43,449 45,633 46,548 915 66,698 66,698 0
Consultancy 9,396 485 0 485 X 0 0 0
Administration 150,194 162,922 143,208 19,714 X 1 174,912 174,912 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 35,661 24,812 22,190 2,622 X 38,035 38,035 0
General Maintenance 489,815 524,175 611,414 87,239 V 2 916,056 916,056 0
Council Staff Support Costs 110,425 110,327 110,327 0 189,140 189,140 0
Total Operating Expenditure 838,940 868,354 933,687 65,333 1,384,841 1,384,841 0
Operating Revenue
Total Rates 658,533 776,610 743,034 33,576 X 1,099,184 1,099,184 0
Other Income 170,418 68,106 129,344 61,238 X 220,354 220,354 0
Building Maintenance Reserve 5,364 21,497 48,855 27,357 X 45,135 45,135 0
Capital Reserve Interest Received 2,571 488 10,801 10,313 X 18,514 18,514 0
Total Operating Revenue 836,886 866,700 932,033 65,333 1,383,187 1,383,187 0
CLOSING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (1,033,201) (792,245) (792,245) (792,245) (792,245)
Capital Expenditure
Parks, Reserves & Township Maint 35,975 38,194 30,000 8,194 X 30,000 30,000 0
Community Halls 36,621 7,390 4,000 3,390 X 4,000 4,000 0
Total Capital Expenditure 72,597 45,585 34,000 11,585 34,000 34,000 0
Capital Revenue
Total Rates 7,763 3,220 3,220 0 155,519 155,519 0
Capital Reserve Interest Received 1,343 916 1,134 218 X 1,939 1,939 0
Funding from Land Subdivision Res 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Revenue 9,106 4,136 4,354 218 157,458 157,458 0
CLOSING BALANCE (1,096,691) (833,694) (821,891) (668,787) (668,787)

Variance Analysis
1. Additional costs approved by Twizel Community Board to fund Information centre provision in Twizel.
2. Cleaning costs forTwizel Events centre are tracking up due to additional cleaning requirements due to the Events Centre toilets being used as a public toilet facility.
Also included in this cost is an additional FCB approved unbudgeted replacement of the dosing unit at the Strathconan Pool ($4,500). This is offset by
the underspend on township costs in Tekapo ($18,259, and Twizel $13,934 as well as lower than anticipated expenditure on the Fairlie community Hall $20,667, the.
Tekapo Hall $11,580 and Twizel reserves $9,941.
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 1,500,766 614,969 614,969 614,969 614,969
Operating Expenditure

Members Costs 19,950 13,475 18,081 4,606 31,000 31,000 0

Consultancy 56,904 32,355 51,051 18,696 V 1 87,520 87,520 0

Administration 77,650 51,969 67,438 15,469 108,587 108,587 0

Capital Reserve Interest Paid 90,780 73,271 100,576 27,305 172,414 172,414 0

General Maintenance 137,969 184,647 165,591 19,056 X 2 275,167 275,167 0

Council Staff Support Costs 71,904 72,877 72,877 0 124,927 124,927 0
Total Operating Expenditure 455,158 428,594 475,614 47,020 799,615 799,615 0
Operating Revenue

General Rates 113,638 (87,751) (22,154) 65,597 56,715 56,715 0

Fairlie Works & Services Rates (22,211) (931) (1,050) 119 X (1,799) (1,799) [

Tekapo Works & Services Rates (57,757) (2,429) (2,492) 63 X (4,267) (4,267) [

Twizel Works & Services Rates (62,202) (2,618) (3,332) 714 X (5,716) (5,716) [

Rural Works & Services Rates (302,085) (12,691) (11,795) 896 (20,218) (20,218) 0

Total Rates (330,617) (106,420) (40,823) 65,597 24,715 24,715 0

Capital Reserve Interest Received 145,960 (77,111) (158,578) 81,467 (271,848) (271,848) 0

Other Income 1,429,149 341,393 732,928 391,535 X 3 1,256,442 1,256,442 0
Total Operating Revenue 1,244,492 157,861 533,527 375,666 1,009,309 1,009,309 0
CLOSING BALANCE 2,290,101 344,236 672,882 824,663 824,663

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 344,691 823,148 823,148 823,148 823,148
Capital Expenditure

Pukaki Airfield 253,425 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Capital Expenditure 253,425 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Revenue

Capital Reserve Interest Received (17,464) 6,861 8,750 1,889 X 15,000 15,000 0 X
Total Capital Revenue (17,464) 6,861 8,750 1,889 15,000 15,000 0
CLOSING BALANCE 73,801 830,010 831,898 838,148 838,148

Variance Analysis

1.

Lower than anticipated legal expenses YTD have resulted in a positive variance. The majority of the costs relating to the major land deal on the table at present

were incurred in the previous financial year.
2. Forestry costs show an unfavourable variance of $29,870 mainly due to the costs associated with the logging operations undertaken at the beginning of the financial year
3. Expecting higher than anticipated property sales yet to eventuate.
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure
Labour 511,653 541,962 549,920 7,958 942,731 942,731 0
Consultancy 62,246 79,766 58,306 21,460 X 1 93,101 93,101 0
Administration 152,387 122,259 147,539 25,280 252,935 252,935 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 5,606 0 2,394 2,394 4,096 4,096 0
General Maintenance 103,805 125,295 110,922 14,373 X 190,133 190,133 0
Council Staff Support Costs 191,359 194,929 194,929 0 334,176 334,176 0
Total Operating Expenditure 1,027,057 1,064,210 1,064,010 200 1,817,172 1,817,172 0
Operating Revenue
Rates 0 0
Other Income 56,525 55,576 54,012 1,564 92,584 92,584 0
Capital Reserve Interest Received 1,619 0 0 0 0 0 0
Council Staff Support Income 1,016,848 1,019,130 1,019,130 0 1,747,106 1,747,106 0
Total Operating Revenue 1,074,992 1,081,782 1,083,754 1,972 1,857,890 1,857,890 0
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 47,935 17,572 19,744 40,718 40,718
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE (53,561) (46,046) (46,046) (46,046) (46,046)
Capital Expenditure
Administration 0 11,338 13,125 1,787 22,500 22,500 0
Information Technology Department 36,880 11,271 4,088 7,183 X 7,000 7,000 0
Total Capital Expenditure 36,880 22,609 17,213 5,396 29,500 29,500 0
Capital Revenue
Council Staff Support Income 32,109 34,713 34,713 0 59,510 59,510 0
Total Capital Revenue 32,109 34,713 34,713 0 59,510 59,510 0
CLOSING BALANCE (58,332) (33,942) (28,546) (16,036) (16,036)

Variance Analysis
1. Tax advice relating to the voluntary disclosure for Mackenzie Holdings Ltd amounting to $8,037. Also additional cost of $4,003 was incurred to provide
District and ward boundary maps in relation to the representation review boundary changes.
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditure

Running Costs 5,083 6,208 8,986 2,778 15,405 15,405 0

Insurance 2,010 2,236 1,746 490 X 2,994 2,994 0

Interest 266 2,882 4,247 1,365 7,280 7,280 0

Licences 1,886 2,372 1,131 1,241 X 1,940 1,940 0

Fuel 16,809 17,664 15,983 1,681 X 27,401 27,401 0
Total Operating Expenditure 26,055 31,362 32,093 731 55,020 55,020 0
Operating Revenue

Operating Expense Recoveries 26,073 56,411 33,308 23,103 X 1 57,100 57,100 0
Total Operating Revenue 26,073 56,411 33,308 23,103 57,100 57,100 0
Over/(Under) Recovery 18 25,049 1,215 2,080 2,080

Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 0 (129,879) (129,879) (129,879) (129,879)
Capital Expenditure
Total Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Revenue

Council Support Inc (Funded Depn) 865 13,181 16,495 3,314 28,278 28,278 0oV

Recoveries Funded Depn 7,854 25,049| 1,215 23,834 X 2,080] 2,080 0
Total Capital Revenue 7,854 25,049 1,215 23,834 2,080 2,080 0
CLOSING BALANCE 7,854 (104,830) (128,664) (127,799) (127,799)

Variance Analysis

1. Change in Chargeout recovery to 48c as per Council resolution to collect sufficient revenue to clear prior years Capital reserve deficits and to fund replacement in future.
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note| Forecast Budget Variance Note|
OPENING BALANCE 1,379,568 494,801 494,800 494,800 494,800
Operating Expenditure
Labour 980,412 1,005,107 1,036,747 31,640 V 1,764,195 1,764,195 0
Members Costs 128,044 149,025 137,100 11,925 X 237,599 237,599 0
Consultancy 174,619 311,733 209,890 101,843 X 326,446 326,446 0
Administration 592,382 515,929 533,162 17,233 810,420 810,420 0
General Maintenance 1,479,484 1,569,653 1,671,626 101,973 V 2,721,508 2,721,508 0
Capital Reserve Interest Paid 228,837 157,159 202,302 45,143 335,126 346,793 11,667
Plant Under Recovery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Roading 628,216 626,812 726,390 99,578 1,264,784 1,264,784 0
Council Support Costs 1,295,145 1,166,998 1,166,935 63 X 2,000,451 2,000,451 0
Total Operating Expenditure 5,507,140 5,502,416 5,684,152 181,736 9,460,529 9,472,196 11,667
Operating Revenue
Total Rates 2,316,990 2,617,152 2,551,270 65,882 X 4,416,502 4,428,169 11,667
Building Maintenance Reserve 12,694 42,303 80,721 38,418 X 85,835 85,835 0
Plant Over Recoveries 18 25,049 1,215 23,834 V 2,080 2,080 0
Net Capital Reserve Interest Received (66,716) (227,251) (342,946) 115,695 (576,245) (587,912) 11,667
Other Income 2,579,015 1,396,012 2,005,311 609,299 X 3,250,357 3,250,357 0
Other Reserve Funding 4,072 1,692 0 1,692 0 0 0
Council Staff Support Income 1,296,572 1,165,542 1,165,024 1,997,191 1,997,191
Total Operating Revenue 6,142,646 5,020,498 5,460,594 440,096 9,175,720 9,175,720 0
CLOSING BALANCE 2,015,075 12,883 271,242 209,992 198,325
Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011
OPERATING RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budget Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note
OPENING BALANCE 1,379,568 494,801 494,800 494,800 494,800
Operating Expenditure (By Activity)
Governance 409,835 441,884 421,874 20,010 X 722,755 722,755 0
Water 278,311 261,432 318,108 56,676 539,899 539,899 0
Sewer 158,210 143,954 149,680 5726 238,799 250,466 11,667
Stormwater 19,792 21,327 34,083 12,756 49,542 49,542 0
Roading 873,626 904,147 1,001,581 97,434 1,736,525 1,736,525 0
Solid Waste 701,708 510,261 557,093 46,832 963,014 963,014 0
Building Control 165,624 162,518 164,759 2,241 282,445 282,445 0
Resource Management 210,942 363,186 207,655 155,531 X 355,971 355,971 0
Regulatory Services 129,106 112,023 119,674 7,651 209,887 209,887 0
Community Services 238,735 227,400 236,334 8,934 360,064 360,064 0
Recreational Facilities 838,940 868,354 933,687 65,333 V 1,384,841 1,384,841 0
Commercial Activities 455,158 428,594 475,614 47,020 799,615 799,615 0
Corporate Services 1,027,057 1,064,210 1,064,010 200 X 1,817,172 1,817,172 0
Plant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Operating Expenditure 5,507,042 5,509,291 5,684,152 174,861 9,460,529 9,472,196 11,667
Operating Revenue
Total Rates 2,316,990 2,617,152 2,551,270 65,882 X 4,416,502 4,428,169 11,667
Building Maintenance Reserve 12,694 42,303 80,721 38,418 X 85,835 85,835 0
Net Capital Reserve Interest Received (66,716) (227,251) (342,946) 115,695 (576,245) (587,912) 11,667
Other Income 2,579,015 1,396,012 2,005,311 609,299 X 3,250,357 3,250,357 0
Other Reserve Funding 4,072 1,692 0 1,692 V 0 0 0
Plant Recoveries 18 25,049 1,215 23,834 2,080 2,080 0
Council Staff Support Income 1,296,572 1,165,542 1,165,024 518 1,997,191 1,997,191 0
Total Operating Revenue 6,142,646 5,020,498 5,460,594 440,096 X 9,175,720 9,175,720 0
CLOSING BALANCE 2,015,173 6,008 271,243 209,992 198,325
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Last Year Jan 2011 Full Year to 30 June 2011

CAPITAL RESERVE STATEMENT YTD Actual Actual Budg Variance Note Forecast Budget Variance Note

OPENING BALANCE (2,190,366) 245,176 245,176 245,176 245,175

Capital Expenditure
Water 49,653 69,016 168,541 99,525 785,936 785,936 0
Sewerage 583,720 208,672 205,000 3,672 X 327,000 327,000 0
Stormwater 0 0 12,000 12,000 20,000 20,000 0
Roading 226,765 165,937 337,778 171,841 1,225,736 1,225,736 0
Solid Waste 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Resource Management 40,774 152,738 52,500 100,238 X 155,000 90,000 65,000 X
Regulatory Services 7,600 5,243 4,270 973 X 13,316 7,316 6,000 X
Community Services 511 0 0 0 0 0 0
Recreational Facilities 72,597 45,585 34,000 11,585 X 34,000 34,000 0
Commercial Activities 253,425 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Services 36,880 22,609 17,213 539 X 29,500 29,500 0
Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 86,926 299,770 299,770

Total Capital Expenditure 741,925 669,799 918,228 248,429 2,890,258 2,819,258 71,000

Capital Revenue
Total Rates (Funded Depn) 509,095 485,040 560,592 75,552 1,310,998 1,310,998 0
Indirect Funded Depreciation 32,875 35,441 35,959 518 61,649 61,649 0
Land Subdivision Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Water 30,073 5,902 5,686 216 62,378 62,378 0
Sewerage 71,009 21,360 24,367 3,007 X 94,671 94,671 0
Stormwater 1,196 1,445 0 1,445 0 0 0
Roading 274,782 183,593 349,314 165,721 X 1,245,525 1,245,525 0
Community Services (12,110) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Recreational Facilities 0 0) 0 0 X 150,000 150,000 0
Commercial Activities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Vested Assets from Developers 0 0 86,926 299,770 299,770

Total Capital Revenue 906,920 732,781 1,062,844 330,063 3,224,991 3,224,991 0

CLOSING BALANCE (2,025,370) 308,159 389,792 579,908 650,908

Variance Analysis
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PROTECTING COMMUNITY ASSETS

Glen Innes

Chief Executive
Mackenzie District Council
PO Box 52

Fairlie 7949

18 February 2011

Dear Glen,
Draft Statement of Intent for 2011

Civic is not a CCO, so it is not required to produce an annual Statement of Intent.
However, we think it good practice to do so, and we know from feedback in previous
years that many of Civic's shareholders agree. A draft Statement of Intent for Civic is
enclosed for you or any of your staff who may wish to comment. To have input on
Civic’s Statement of Intent for 2011, I will need to receive any comments by 23 March.

The Christchurch earthquake has not changed Civic’s credit rating. Although Civic
suffered a loss in 2010 it still enjoys a very healthy solvency margin and one that is well
above the industry average. To ensure Civic will retain its AM Best A (Excellent)
rating even if there is a second and third very large event, the Civic Board is
recommending the withholding of dividends for the next three years.

Funds under management in Civic’s SuperEasy and SuperEasy KiwiSaver schemes will
pass through $100 million this year. These local government superannuation schemes
are a great asset for the sector and as always your support is appreciated.

Yours sincerely

#)

|lll N
] N
/ h
{ \\_H___ _

Tim Sole
Chief Executive
DDI: 04-978-1254

Email: tim.sole(@civicassurance.co.nz

Civic Assurance,

114 Lambton Quay,

PO Box 5521, Wellington 6145,

http:/www.civicassurance.co.nz

New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Ltd Tel: (04) 978 1250 Fax: (04) 978 1260
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NEW ZEALAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT
INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
trading as Civic Assurance

DRAFT STATEMENT OF INTENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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1.0 Mission Statement
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Mission Statement of Civic Assurance

To ensure the long-term provision of stable, cost effective,
and proactive financing and risk-financing solutions for the
local government sector

2.0 Corporate Goals

The specific goals of the Company are:

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

25

To operate as a sound and successful business.

To be the primary supplier of insurance and superannuation
services to the local government sector.

To optimise the cost of risk for local government by providing or
supporting the most suitable risk-financing products to cover
property and liability risks. These products may include insurance,
risk pooling, mutual funding and trust operations.

To investigate and facilitate as appropriate new products and
markets in financing and risk-financing that will prove beneficial to
the Company’s shareholders, clients and their staff.

To maintain a claims paying ability rating of A (Excellent).

Civic Assurance
-



3.0 Nature and Scope of Activities

The Company’s primary role is providing long-term value to the local government
sector through the provision of financial services.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

For traditional insurance, the Company offers:

A vehicle supported by a strong reinsurance programme for local
government to pool risk, the profits from which are returned to the
sector through the Company’s local government shareholders.

e Dependable, competitive prices in all cycles of the insurance market.

¢ An honest and fair process for managing claims.

Expert, unbiased risk-financing advice to local authorities.

The Company provides administration, reinsurance, accounting, and a
range of other services for mutual funding and trust initiatives for Local
Govemment Mutual Funds Trustee Limited (Riskpool) and the New
Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund (LAPP).

The Company provides superannuation services for local government
and local govermment staff via SuperEasy and SuperEasy KiwiSaver.

The Company provides accounting services to Local Government New
Zealand (LGNZ), the NZ Society of Local Government Managers
(SOLGM), Local Government Industry Training Organisation (LGITO)
and Local Government Online (LGOL).

The Company continues to investigate and facilitate as appropriate new
products and markets that it believes will prove beneficial to its
shareholders, clients and their staff.

Ownership and management of Civic Assurance House in Wellington's
CBD provides a centre for local government, offices for the Company,
and diversity of investment risk.

In a modest and selective way the Company provides sponsorship for a
range of local government activities at regional and national level.

Civic Assurance
-3-
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4.0 Profits, Dividend Policy & Projections

The Company has three main sources of revenue: insurance premiums, investment
income, and fees from providing administration and accounting services. The profit
outlook is as follows:

Profits from providing insurance: The insurance business has been
extremely competitive with insurance rates well below what they were in 2001,
which was the bottom of the last insurance rate cycle. More realistic pricing
from insurers is expected in 2011 following the 4 September 2010
Christchurch earthquake.

Profits from investment income: An environment of lower interest rates and
investment returns inevitably means less investment income. Civic's
investment return is heavily influenced by the investment performance of its
nine-story office block at 114 Lambton Quay, Wellington.

Profits from providing administration and accounting services: After
allowing for Civic’s expenses these are very modest, but will increase as the
amount of the subsidy for maintaining SuperEasy KiwiSaver decreases.

The effect of the Christchurch earthquake has been to reduce the Company’s net
equity from $19.5 million to $15.8 million. The Company’s solvency margin is still
one of the best in New Zealand, but not as high as it was. The Company therefore
proposes to withhold dividends until such time as it has restored its capital base,
which will probably take three or four years. This is shown in the projections below:

Year Ended 31 Dec 2011 | 31 Dec 2012 | 31 Dec 2013
Pre-Tax Surplus $750,000 $1,500,000 $2,250,000
Gross cost of dividend 0 0 0

Net Asset Value $15,800,000 | $16,550,000 | $18,050,000
Net Asset Value per share $2.47 $2.59 $2.82

5.0 Performance Targets and Measures

5.1 Financial returns: an average profit before tax of not less than
$1,500,000 pa over the next three years.

5.2 Net equity of $20 million or more by 31 December 2014.

5.3 Financial strength: a claims paying ability rating from rating agency AM
Best of “A (Excellent)”.

5.4 To provide financial services to at least 90% of local authorities.

5.5 To be acknowledged as the preferred supplier for the local government
market of superannuation services.

5.6 To continue to be an efficient and effective Fund Manager for Riskpool
and an efficient and effective Administration Manager for LAPP.

Civic Assurance
-4-

38



6.0 Reporting to Shareholders

e Draft Statement of Intent for the Company by 10 February 2010.
e Adopted Statement of Intent for the Company by 1 April 2010.

e Anannual report for 2010 by 31 May 2011 containing:

A review of the Company’s operations by Directors
Statement of Financial Performance

Statement of Movements in Equity

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Auditor's Report on the above Financial Statements

O 0 00O O0Oo

°
pd

report on the first half of 2011 by 30 September 2011 containing:

(¢]

A review of the Company’s operations during the half year
Unaudited half-yearly accounts

(e}

7.0 Acquisitions

Any acquisition which is equivalent to 50% or more of the Company’s assets will fall
under the definition of a “major transaction” in the Company’s constitution and
approval of the shareholders will be sought in accordance with the constitution. Any
acquisition which is equivalent to 25% or more but less than half of the Company’s
assets will fall under the definition of a "minor transaction” in the Company’s
constitution, and consultation with shareholders will take place.

8.0 Transactions with Related Parties

The Company has 67 local authority shareholder members plus TrustPower (holding
2.1%). The Local Government Superannuation Trustee Limited and Local
Government Mutual Funds Trustee Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Local Government Online Ltd is 25% owned by the Company.
Transactions with shareholder members include a full range of insurances and other
risk-financing services and retirement related financial services.

Charges from shareholder members and charges to shareholder members will be
made for services provided as part of the normal trading activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries. Transactions with shareholder members are on a wholly
commercial basis.

Civic Assurance
-5-
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14 February 2011

Local Authority Protection Programme

Glen Innes
Chief Executive

Mackenzie District Council
PO Box 52
Fairlie 7949

Dear Glen,

2010 Annual Report, Website Update, LAPP Credit Rating

We have pleasure in enclosing your copy of the LAPP 2010 Annual Report and take this
opportunity to let you know that the LAPP website www.lappfund.co.nz has now been updated
with the following documentation where applicable to your council:

Latest LAPP Asset Schedule

Latest Risk Profile Report

Latest Claims Procedures

Report on the 4 Sept 2010 Canterbury Earthquake

LAPP will be paying just over $20 million in claims following the Christchurch earthquakes on 4
September and 26 December. This has halved the size of the LAPP Fund, so not surprisingly
LAPP’s credit rating from AM Best has been downgraded from A to B++ with negative watch.
This rating is still ‘secure’ as defined by AM Best, but for LAPP to have funds for ‘the big one
after the next big one’ the intention is to re-build the LAPP Fund back to an ‘A’ rating as soon as
practical.

If you have any questions please let me know.

Kind regards

Christopher Munden

Fund Manager
Phone: (04)) 978 1251
Email: christopher.munden@civicassurance.co.nz

New Zealand Local Authority Disaster Fund Trust Board
114 Lambton Quay e PO Box 5521, Wellington e Telephone 64 4 978 1250 e Facsimile 64 4 978 1260
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CHAIRMAN'’S REPORT

| have pleasure in presenting the Chairman’s Report for the

2009/2010 financial year.

As we go to print it is in somewhat of a surreal atmosphere
that we report on the Fund’s continued fine performance
and activity in the twelve months to 30 June 2010 and at
the same time immediately acknowledge the devastating
Christchurch earthquake that occurred on 4 September and

the claims that will emanate from this event.

Although thankfully there were no lives lost, this devastating
event caused more property damage than any previous
event in New Zealand history. Two of LAPP's members,
Christchurch City Council and Waimakariri District Council,
will receive significant payments from the LAPP Fund for
rectifying earthquake damage. In fact, we believe that the
LAPP payment to Christchurch City Council arising from this
earthquake is going to be bigger than any payment ever
made by any New Zealand insurance company to any one of

their policyholders.

Because of the wide extent of the reticulation services
damage and the fact that most of it is underground, we are
some months away from being able to provide members
with a definitive loss scenario from the 4 September
earthquake. However, | can say that LAPP is responding to
this event exactly as it was supposed to because this was
precisely the type of disaster that was anticipated when

LAPP was set up in 1993.

During the year the Fund’s trustees and administrators were
involved in a number of wide ranging activities and decision
making processes designed to ensure the continued viability
of the Fund whilst continuing to enhance benefits to its
members. A report commissioned from BERL in May 2010
detailed the benefits of LAPP to local government members

and is reprinted in this annual report.

The second LAPP benchmarking survey was completed
during the year. The survey was open to all local authorities
at no cost, whether members of LAPP or not. This enabled
local authorities to self-evaluate their risk management of

above and below ground infrastructure relative to the

43

New Zealand standard on risk management and against

other local authorities.

Local authorities that responded to the survey received a
report on their performance and a global report covering all
local authorities. Local authorities that participated in the
2005 survey were provided with a comparison with their
performance in the earlier survey. A web-based approach
and sophisti‘cated software enabled cost efficient delivery
of these reports to members. The benchmarking survey
continues to demonstrate the leadership by the LAPP Fund

in the risk management of infrastructure assets.

A very important part of the Fund’s risk management
programme is that each member is visited at least every four
years for a review of their infrastructure assets covered by
the LAPP Fund. These visits also involve a review of asset
management practices and management of natural hazard
exposures to these assets. This programme ensures that

the trustees have up-to-date information on the assets
being covered by the Fund and helps members with their
assessment of the replacement values of these assets.
Reports are prepared for members as well as for the Fund's

reinsurers following these visits.

The LAPP Fund continues to be at the forefront of natural
hazard risk assessment for infrastructure hazards, and in
these matters works closely with the Institute of Geological
and Nuclear Sciences (GNS) and the National Institute

for Water and Atmospheric Research (NIWA). The Fund’s
long term association with GNS will prove invaluable in
pooling together information fearnt from the Christchurch
earthquake for the future benefit of members in

management of their infrastructure risks.

Natural hazards led to three claims from members in the
2009/2010 year:

e Snow collapsed a stave tank reservoir in Ruapehu

e A tsunami damaged submarine water supply pipelines

in Lyttelton Harbour

e An earthquake swarm damaged waste water pipe lines

in Edgecumbe.



These claims are not large when compared to the potential
natural disaster losses the Fund could have suffered, but

they were significant to the members involved.

The 2009/2010 year saw further member benefits

incorporated into the Fund. These were:

e Al members now have the minimum deductible formula
-~ 0.1% of the total asset value declared as covered by
the Fund with a maximum deductible of $500,000;

e LAPP will cover the “gap” between the central
government threshold and the LAPP deductible so
members only need to self-fund the LAPP deductible.

During the year the trustees further agreed that:

e The Fund will cover at the 40% level temporary
repair costs and emergency response costs incurred
to maintain essential services as currently defined
in Section 26.4.2 of the Guide to the National Civil
Defence and Emergency Management Plan. This
additional coverage dovetails with the 60% cover
provided by central government for these costs and

has been effective since 1 July 2010.

The provision of such expanded coverage was possible
because of the continuing strong financial performance

of the Fund.

A member meeting and workshop was held in Wellington

in May 2010 attended by the Minister for Civil Defence,
policy advisors from the Emergency Management section

of Department of Internal Affairs and the National

Controller from the Ministry of Civil Defence and Emergency
Management. The member meeting also included a visit to
the National Crisis Management Centre in Wellington and
presentations from the Fund Manager and Risk Management

Partners, the Fund’s risk management advisors.

The LAPP Fund website at www.lappfund.co.nz continues
to provide members with information on the policies and
procedures of the LAPP Fund. Each member can access
from the website the latest information it has provided

on the infrastructure assets declared for cover by the

LAPP Fund and many other reports. The website also

LAPP Anrldl Report 2010

carries information from the Ministry of Civil Defence and
Emergency Management and other relevant authorities
relating to natural hazard risk assessment and the
reinstatement of assets following a major natural hazard
event. As always, we recommend members regularly visit
the site to keep themselves up-to-date with the latest
changes and publications and to ensure that LAPP has the

member’s up-to-date contact details.

During the year we welcomed another new member to the
Fund, Waitomo District Council. At 30 June 2010 LAPP's

membership stood at 59.

The administrators and risk managers of the Fund

continue to work with a number of other councils that

have expressed a strong interest in LAPP as their preferred
protection vehicle for their obligations under Section 26.5.1
of the Guide to the National Civil Defence Emergency
Management Plan. We suspect the Christchurch earthquake
will cause a number of non-member councils to look much

more closely at the real benefits of LAPP Fund membership.

During the year, we continued our dialogue with
representatives of the Ministry of Civil Defence and
Emergency Management on matters of mutual interest.
We continue to believe that local authorities have a better
chance of receiving more sympathetic government support
for damage to reticulation and flood protection assets if

they are a member of LAPP.

This has again been a busy year for the administrators
and risk managers of the Fund and 1 wish to thank the
administration management staff, particularly Christopher
Munden, Tim Sole and Roger Gyles along with Risk
Management Partners, Bryan Whitefield and Marlene
Kanga, for their work during the year. | also thank my
fellow trustees for their active participation and input into

the Fund’s affairs.

e

Kinsley Sampson
Chairman
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AUDIT REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEW ZEALAND LOCAL AUTHORITY PROTECTION

PROGRAMME DISASTER FUND

We have audited the financial statements on pages 5 to
14. The financial statements provide information about the
past financial performance of the Fund and its financial
position as at 30 June 2010. This information is stated in
accordance with the accounting policies set out on page

9to 10.

Trustees’ responsibilities

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation of

financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund as at 30 June 2010 and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended

on that date.

Auditor’s responsibilities

It is our responsibility to express an independent opinion
on the financial statements presented by the Trustees and

report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. It also includes assessing:

e the significant estimates and judgements made by the

Trustees in the preparation of the financial statements;

e whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Fund’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed. ‘

45

s

We conducted our audit in accordance with New Zealand
Auditing Standards. We planned and performed our

audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatements,
whether caused by fraud or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation

of information in the financial statements.

Other than in our capacity as auditors we have no

relationship with or interests in the Fund.

Unqualified opinion
We have obtained all the information and explanations we
have required.

In our opinion the financial statements on pages 5 to 14:

e comply with New Zealand generally accepted

accounting practice;

* give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Fund as at 30 June 2010 and the results of its operations
and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Our audit was completed on 19 October 2010 and our

unqualified opinion is expressed as at that date.

KR MG
o

Wellington
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Note 2010 2009
$ $
INCOME
Members' Contributions 3,174,879 3,371,573
New Entrant Additional Contributions - 1,680,750
Interest — Bank Deposits 1,134,710 1,771,598
Income from Managed Funds (net) 3 252,812 (1,529,111)
Sundry income 38,187
TOTAL INCOME 4,600,588 5,294,810
EXPENDITURE
Direct Expenses
Claims Expense 1,327,394 (366,276)
Risk Management Programme 253,393 180,420
Excess of Loss Insurance Premium 1,974,865 1,739,825
3,555,652 1,553,969
Other Expenses
Administration Fees 5 245,158 236,180
Audit Fees-Financial Statements 6,450 6,030
Consultancy 46,287 17,195
Legal Fees 455 1,806
Meeting / Travel Expenses 13,076 8,934
Printing and Stationery 8,302 7,641
Rating Agency Fee 10,058
Trustees’ Liability Insurance 12,500 12,500
Trustees’ Remuneration 18,900 12,600
Sundry Expenses 1,900 541
363,086 303,427
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 3,918,738 1,857,396
Net Surplus before tax 681,850 3,437,414
Tax expense - -
NET SURPLUS 681,850 3,437,414

The notes to the Financial Statements form part of and are to be read in conjunction with this Statement of Financial Performance.



B

LAPP Annual Report 2010

New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

2010 2009

$ $

Net Surplus for the year 681,850 3,437,414
TOTAL RECOGNISED REVENUES AND EXPENSES 681,850 3,437,414
EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 36,963,095 33,525,681
EQUITY AT END OF YEAR 37,644,945 36,963,095

The notes to the Financial Statements form part of and are to be read in conjunction with this Statement of Movements in Equity.
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2010

Note 2010 2009
$ $
TOTAL EQUITY 37,644,945 36,963,095
Represented By:
Current Assets

Bank — ANZ National Bank Ltd 640,225 427,794

Short Term Deposits — Bank Deposits 6 28,450,000 26,455,000

Accrued Interest 225,098 504,027

Accounts Receivable 50,322 55,686

GST Receivable 12,193 4,949

New Entrant Additional Contributions 9 185,820 262,180
Total Current Assets 29,563,658 27,709,636
Investments

Managed Funds:

AMP — WINZ Fund 3,6 9,536,964 9,414,162
Total Investments 9,536,964 9,414,162
TOTAL ASSETS 39,100,622 37,123,798
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 138,677 131,640

Contributions Received in Advance - 29,063

Provision for Claims 10 1,317,000 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,455,677 160,703
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,455,677 160,703
EXCESS OF ASSETS OVER LIABILITIES 37,644,945 36,963,095

Approved for and on behalf of the Board on 19 October 2010:

/Q o‘r?zv—-w‘” M&

KN SAMPSON - CHAIRMAN D LOTT — TRUSTEE

The notes to the Financial Statements form part of and are to be read in conjunction with this Statement of Financial Position.
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

49

Note 2010 2009
$ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was Provided from:
Members’ Contributions 3,220,922 5,160,588
Interest Received — Bank 1,413,639 2,093,117
Sundry Income 34,448 -
4,669,009 7,253,705
Cash was Applied to:
Claims 1,779 417,768
Risk Management Programme 261,146 159,839
Excess of Loss [nsurance 1,974,865 1,739,825
Administration Fees 242,913 230,251
Meeting / Travel Expenses 1,710 20,196
Trustees’ Remuneration 18,900 12,600
Other Expenses 84,807 62,743
Net GST Paid 5,468 (2,221)
2,591,588 2,641,001
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4 2,077,421 4,612,704
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was Provided from:
Investment Income 130,010 158,555
130,010 158,555
Cash was Applied to:
Purchase of Investments — WiNZ Funds - 2,000,000
Purchase of Investments — Short term Bank Deposits 1,995,000 2,880,000
1,995,000 4,880,000
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,864,990) (4,721,445)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash Held 212,431 (108,741)
Opening Cash Balance 427,794 536,535
CLOSING CASH BALANCE 640,225 427,794
Represented By:
Bank — ANZ National Bank Ltd 640,225 427,794
640,225 427,794

The notes to the Financial Statements form part of and are to be read in conjunction with this Statement of Cash Flows.
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity and Basis of Preparation
These financial statements for the New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund (“The Fund”) have been

prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice and the Charitable Trusts Act 1957.

The financial statements of the Fund are for the year ended 30 June 2010. The financial statements were authorised for issue by
the Board of Trustees on 19 October 2010.

The Fund qualifies for Differential Reporting exemptions. With the exception of presenting a Statement of Cash Flows, all available

exemptions allowed under the framework for Differential Reporting have been adopted.

Basis of Measurement

The measurement base adopted is that of historical cost, except for investments which are at market value.

Currency

These financial Statements are presented in New Zealand Dollars.

Adoption of New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS)

In September 2007, the Accounting Standards Review Board announced the delay of the mandatory adoption of NZ IFRS for

certain entities. The Fund satisfies the deferral criteria and has therefore decided to delay the adoption of the NZ IFRS standards.

Particular Accounting Policies

The following particular accounting policies which materially affect the measurement of financial performance and financial

position have been applied:

INVESTMENTS
Investments are recorded at quoted market value, less the estimated cost of disposal. Changes in the value of investments are

recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

TAXATION
The Fund has been granted charitable status under section CW 34(1) of the Income Tax Act 2004 by the Inland Revenue

Department, hence no taxation has been provided for in the financial statements.

GOODS AND SERVICES TAX

The Financial Statements are prepared on a GST exclusive basis, except for receivables and payables that are stated inclusive of GST.

PROVISION FOR CLAIMS

A provision for claims is recognised when:

e aclaim has been received;

e a potential obligation has been recognised by the Board of Trustees;

e itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

e an estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

9
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

INCOME RECOGNITION
Interest income is accounted for on an accruals basis. Any unrealised gains or losses arising from the revaluation of investments

and realised gains or losses from the sale of investments during the year are included in the statement of financial performance.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in shares, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans

and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss,
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are measured as

described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
derecognised if the Fund’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Fund transfers the financial

asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.

Fair value through profit or loss
An instrument is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or designated as such upon initial

recognition.

Shares are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Fund manages such investments and makes purchase and sale
decisions based on their fair value. Shares held for trading are classified as current assets. Upon initial recognition, attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

OTHER
Subsequent to initial recognition, other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any impairment losses.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The following are definitions of the terms used in the Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash: comprises cash balances held with banks in New Zealand and overseas. Cash excludes term deposits that
are not used as part of the Fund‘s day to day cash management.

Investing activities:  comprise acquisition and disposal of investments. Investments include securities not falling within the
definition of cash.

Operating activities: include all transactions and other events that are not investing activities.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies during the year. All policies have been applied on a basis consistent with

previous years.
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

NOTE 2. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The purpose of the Fund is to provide cover to member local governments for losses or damage to infrastructure assets resulting

from flooding, earthquakes and other damaging events.

NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS

2010 2009
$ $

Income from Managed Funds
Investment Income 200,090 160,355
Change in Net Current Value 52,722 (1,689,466)
252,812 (1,529,111)

Managed Funds

AMP: The cost of investments held by AMP at 30 June 2010 was $12,000,000 (2009: $12,000,000).
Market value of investments held by AMP at 30 June 2010 was $9,536,964 (2009: $9,414,162).

NOTE 4. RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS TO NET
CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2010 2009
$ $
Net Surplus 681,850 3,437,414 -
Items included in Investing Activities
Investment Income (130,010) (158,555)
Gain in Managed Funds (122,802) 1,687,666
(252,812) 1,529,111
Add / (less) movements in other working capital items
Accrued Interest 278,929 321,520
GST Receivable (7,244) 3,718
New Entrant Additional Contributions 76,360 83,715
Contributions received in Advance (29,063) 29,063
Accounts Receivable 5,364 (16,068)
Accounts Payable & Provisions 1,324,037 (775,769)
1,648,383 (353,821)

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,077,421 4,612,704
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTiNuED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

NOTE 5. RELATED PARTIES

Administration fees of $245,158 (2009: $236,180) relate to the New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Limited,

trading as Civic Assurance (Civic). Civic is the Administration Manager of the Fund.

NOTE 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Fund is involved with a number of financial instruments in the course of its normal activities.

Fair Value

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their fair value.

Credit Risk
Financial instruments which potentially expose the Fund to credit risk consist of cash, short term deposits, receivables and
investments in managed funds. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of these financial instruments.

All investments and short term deposits are with high credit quality counterparties.

Currency Risk
The Fund is exposed to currency risk in that future currency movements will affect the valuation of investments in managed funds

which invest in foreign currency denominated investments.

Risk management activities are undertaken by the Fund’s investment managers to operate within the guidelines provided by the

Trustees.

Interest Rate Risk

The Fund is exposed to interest rate risk in that future interest rate movements will affect cash flows and net market values of fixed
interest assets and, indirectly, the valuation of investments in managed funds which invest in cash and fixed interest investments.
The intention of the Trustees is not necessarily to hold these assets to maturity, but to realise and purchase similar assets as part of

the ongoing management of the investments of the Fund. There is no maturity period for unitised investments.

Effective Interest 2010 6 months 6-12 1-2 Non-Interest
Rate 2010 $ or less months years Bearing
Financial Assets

Bank 2.8% 640,225 640,225 - - -
Short Term Cash Deposits 4.0% 28,450,000 28,450,000 - - -
Receivables - 50,322 - - - 50,322
New Entrant Contributions - 185,820 - - - 185,820
Investments - 9,536,964 - - - 9,536,964
Total financial assets 38,863,331 29,090,225 - - 9,773,106

Financial Liabilities
Payables - 138,677 - - - 138,677
Total financial liabilities 138,677 - - - 138,677

NET FINANCIAL POSITION 38,724,654 29,090,225 - = 9,634,429
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New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTiNUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Effective Interest 2009 6 months 6—-12 1-2 Non—Interest
Rate 2009 $ or less months years Bearing
—;nancial Assets N
Bank 2.8% 427,794 427,794
Short Term Cash Deposits 4.5% 26,455,000 18,965,000 7,490,000 - -
Receivables - 55,686 - - - 55,686
New Entrant Contributions - 262,180 - - - 262,180
Investments - 9,414,162 - . - 9,414,162
Total financial assets 36,614,822 19,392,794 7,490,000 : 9,732,028
Financial Liabilities
Payables - 130,150 - - 2 130,150
Total financial liabilities 130,150 - - - 130,150
NET FINANCIAL POSITION 36,484,672 19,392,794 7,490,000 - 9,601,878

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial liabilities.

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Fund's reputation. The Fund manages this risk as they have discretion in the total amount of claims paid, in accordance with the
Trust Deed. This Deed enables the Trustees to ensure sufficient liquidity and reserves are retained by the Fund. Additionally, cash

and short term deposit reserves are maintained at sufficient levels to ensure all such claims can be met.

NOTE 7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Fund has the ability to provide support to Members amounting to a maximum of $133.6 million (2009: $136.9 million).
This amount is made up of retained equity $37.6 million (2009: $36.9 million), and reinsurance facilities $96.0 million
(2009: $103.0 million).

The protection will only be available to Members at the discretion of the Trustees exercised in accordance with the provisions of

the Trust Deed.
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New Zealand Locai Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTiNuED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

NOTE 8. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE

On 4 September 2010, a major earthquake occurred in the lower South Island of New Zealand. The majority of damage caused
by this event has been realised in the Christchurch and Waimakariri regions. Both the Christchurch City and Waimakariri District
Councils are members of the LAPP Fund. As at the date of these financial statements, preliminary estimates of the expected loss
covered by LAPP including the ‘above ground’ assets of Christchurch City Council is estimated to be within the region of $200
to $300 million. When available reinsurance cover is taken into consideration LAPP is exposed to a net loss of approximately

$20.2 million.

NOTE 9. NEW ENTRANT ADDITIONAL CONTRIBUTIONS

New Councils joining the Fund are required to pay an additional levy to the Fund. This amount is payable when:

e the Trustees resolve to cap the Fund and/or contributions are reduced on a pro-rata basis, or

e the Member has a claim.

Notwithstanding the above, a Member may make payments on account of the new entrant additional contributions at any time.

As at balance date Members who have joined LAPP in the last three years owed the Fund $185,820 on account of new entrant

additional contributions.

2010 2009

$ $

Opening Balance 262,180 345,895

New Member - -

Rebates 2009/10 (76,353) (83,715)

Claims Off-set - -

CLOSING BALANCE 185,827 262,180
NOTE 10. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS

2010 2009

$ $

Opening Balance - 784,044

Less: Claims Paid - 417,768

- 366,276

Movement in Provision 1,317,000 (366,276)

CLOSING BALANCE 1,317,000 -

Claims payments are made as claims are quantified and approved by the Trustees.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF 2009/ 2010 FUND YEAR

e The Fund welcomed Waitomo District Council as a new member.
Membership now stands at 59 councils.

e Fund equity now stands at $37.6 million.

e The LAPP reinsurance programme successfully renewed.

e Second LAPP benchmarking survey completed.

e LAPP received an A (Excellent) Credit Rating from A.M. Best.

e LAPP received its first tsunami claim (pipeline damage in Lyttelton Harbour).

e Member benefits enhanced as described in the Chairman’s Report.

e LAPP member meeting attended by Minister for Civil Defence.
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TRUSTEE INFORMATION

The Trustees and their nominating bodies are:

LD Cavers SOLGM

DJ Mcleod SOLGM

WA Raymond QS0 LGNZ

IRF McKelvie LGNZ

KN Sampson MNZM Civic Assurance
DA Lott Civic Assurance

CEO, Hauraki District Council

CEO, Matamata-Piako District Council
Former Mayor, Timaru District Council
Mayor, Manawatu District Council
Former Chairman, Civic Assurance

CFO, North Shore City Council

During the year, the Trustees met for formal meetings on 4 occasions.

Attendance was:

LD Cavers 4
D) McLeod 2
WA Raymond 3
IRF McKelvie 4
KN Sampson 4

DA Lott 3
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2009 / 2010 FUND YEAR MEMBERSHIP

Ashburton District Council
Buller District Council
Carterton District Council
Central Hawke's Bay District Council
Christchurch City Council
Clutha District Council
Environment Bay of Plenty
Environment Southland
Environment Waikato
Gisborne District Council
Gore District Council

Grey District Council

Hastings District Council
Hauraki District Council
Hawke’s Bay Regional Coundil
Horizons Regional Council
Horowhenua District Council
Hurunui District Council

Hutt City Council

Invercargill City Council

Kaikoura District Council
Kapiti Coast District Council
Kawerau District Council
Manawatu District Council
Marlborough District Council

Masterton District Council

Matamata-Piako District Council

Nelson City Council

New Plymouth District Council
North Shore City Council
Opotiki District Council
Otorohanga District Council
Palmerston North City Council
Papakura District Council
Porirua City Council

Rangitikei District Council
Rotorua District Council
Ruapehu District Council
South Taranaki District Council

South Waikato District Council
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South Wairarapa District Council
Stratford District Council
Tararua District Council

Tasman District Council
Tauranga City Council

Thames Coromandel District Council
Timaru District Council

Upper Hutt City Council
Waimakariri District Council
Waimate District Council

Waipa District Council

Wiairoa District Council

Waitaki District Council
Waitomo District Council
Wanganui District Council

West Coast Regional Coundil
Westland District Council
Whakatane District Council

Whangarei District Council
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ABOUT LAPP

Before LAPP

Before central government’s Disaster Recovery Plan was
introduced in July 1991, central government in the event
of a disaster took full responsibility for all costs associated
with the restoration of water and sewage services

along with all other services considered essential to the

community that were otherwise uninsurable.

The 1991 Disaster Recovery Plan changed that. The Plan
stated that beyond a threshold, central government would
only pay a maximum of 60% of restoration costs in the
event of a catastrophe and that this 60% would only be
offered on the provision that (a) the local authority could
demonstrate that the damaged assets had been properly
maintained and (b) the local authority could meet the

remaining 40% through:
* The use of reserve funds set aside for this purpose, or
* Insurance, or

s  Participation in a mutual assistance scheme with other

local authorities.

The Introduction of LAPP

A working party formed from various local government
interest groups considered the means by which local
authorities could meet their 40% obligation under the
1991 Disaster Recovery Plan. Of the many options that
were studied by the working party, a mutual assistance
scheme structured as a charitable trust was considered to

be the best.

59

The following advantages over insurance were identified:

e ltis cost effective. There are no profit motives or
commissions with a charitable trust, overheads are
lower, investment income is retained, and a charitable

trust is tax exempt.

s  Operating as a mutual assistance scheme with other
local authorities offers better opportunities for the
sector for the collection of risk management data
and for improved risk management practices to be

implemented.

¢ Management of the scheme’s assets, their security,
and control of the claims processes is retained by local

government.

e There is much greater certainty of costs and cover
in a mutual assistance scheme compared to the

uncertainties of the insurance cycle.

The advantages of a mutual assistance scheme compared

to a council setting aside its own disaster reserve are:
e The costs of a disaster are then spread.

* [tis too easy for a council to raid its own disaster fund
(or cut back planned contributions) for use in other

programmes within that local authority.

* A council’s reserve fund (as history has shown) will
rarely if ever be sufficient in a major event, let alone
two big events should a local authority’s community be

unfucky enough to have back-to-back disasters.

A mutual assistance scheme, namely The Local Authority
Protection Programme Disaster Fund (LAPP), began

operating on 1 July 1993.



LAPP Today

LAPP is now in its eighteenth year. In that time there has
been a handful of small claims and one medium-sized

claim following the February 2004 Manawatu floods.

No large claims in its first 16 years of existence has

given LAPP the start its founders had hoped for. This is
because it has allowed LAPP to build substantial reserves;
reserves that would not have been held by LAPP today if
LAPP’s members had organised their protection through

insurance.

Backed by those reserves and an insurance programme

managed by Civic Assurance, LAPP in 2009 extended the
cover it is able to offer to local authorities to ALL of their
assets. The advantages to local authorities of using LAPP

for ALL of their non-liability protection are:

e Using LAPP is cost effective. There are no profit
motives or commissions with LAPP; investment income
is fully retained, and LAPP being a charitable trust is
tax exempt. Unlike a number of insurance companies,

LAPP’s overheads are very low.

e Security: all of LAPP's reinsurers have a credit rating of
“A" or better. LAPP's reinsurance programme contains
an automatic reinstatement of cover clause, so a large
disaster in one part of the country will not leave other

parts of the country unprotected!

e Stability: members of LAPP must give at least 12
months’ notice before terminating their membership,
which helps avoid the price shocks and cover shortfalls
that insurance can sometimes deliver. A trust fund
designed to last 100 years is clearly more stable than
100 one-year insurance policies placed over time with

a variety of insurers.

e Very importantly, the control of the claims process
is retained by a body that is managed by local

government and that wants to pay claims.
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LAPP of course continues to offer its members the disaster
funding protection for local government’s 40% share
as described in section 26.5 of the June 2009 version
of the Guide to the National Civil Defence Emergency

Management Plan.

Membership of LAPP

The Administration Manager confirms, as required by the
trust deed, that all members have fuifilled their obligations

regarding their contributions to the LAPP Fund.

Membership of LAPP is restricted to local authorities

and CCO’s (Council Controlled Organisations). Current
membership stands at 59 local authorities and is still
growing. Local authorities and CCO’s who would like to
consider joining LAPP are strongly encouraged to contact

the Administration Manager and ask for a quotation.
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ADMINISTRATION MANAGER
Civic Assurance

PO Box 5521

Wellington 6145

REINSURANCE MANAGER
Aon Re Worldwide
Sydney

Australia

RISK MANAGER

Risk Management Partners Pty Ltd
Beacon Hill

Sydney

Australia

THE ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE IS
Christopher Munden

Administration Manager

NZ Local Authority Protection

Programme Disaster Fund

PO Box 5521

Wellington 6145

Phone: 04 978 1251
Facsimile: 04 978 1260

Email: christopher.munden@civicassurance.co.nz
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Benefits of LAPP
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person.

All work is done, and services rendered at the request of, and for the purposes of the client only. Neither BERL nor

any of its employees accepts any responsibility on any grounds whatsoever, including negligence, to any other

While every effort is made by BERL to ensure that the information, opinions and forecasts provided to the client are
accurate and reliable, BERL shall not be liable for any adverse consequences of the client's decisions made in
reliance of any report provided by BERL, nor shall BERL be held to have given or implied any warranty as to whether

any report provided by BERL will assist in the performance of the client’s functions.

@ economics

Benefits of LAPP

May 2010
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1 Introduction

This report presents the case as to why the Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster
Fund (LAPP) is expected to provide the most effective solution for protecting local authorities’
assets. It also aims to present the benefits of LAPP in a manner that can be understood by
the layperson.

This analysis does not attempt a full cost benefit analysis, comparing actual or estimated
costs of the various options for meeting risk obligations. The report therefore focuses on the
arguments and the long-term benefits of participating in LAPP based on:

« LAPP’s status as a charitable trust — which results in lower costs through not being
subject to tax and not having a profit requirement

« LAPP’s ownership — which dictates the organisation’s cuiture in terms of its activities and
responsibilities to its members and in particular its willingness to accommodate claims

« LAPP’s operation as a mutual fund — which enables it to build up a significant pool for

generating investment income to be used for the benefit of members.

The report discusses these benefits in relation to the other risk-financing options available to

focal authorities, namely private insurance or self-insurance.

The analysis draws on annual reports, insurance industry statistics, and a literature search.

This has been supplemented by discussions with LAPP’s administration manager.

The next chapter provides background, looking at when and why insurance/risk-financing of
local authorities’ assets is desirable and the options available. Chapter 3 provides an

overview of LAPP, outlining its services, its benefits and its current activity.

Chapter 4 discusses the insurance and self-insurance options and compares them to LAPP.
It also covers other issues such as the role of Central Government and why all local
authorities are not members of LAPP. The report is wrapped up in Chapter 5 in the form of a

conclusion.

. Benefits of LAPP
economics May 2010
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2 Background

This section looks at why local authorities need to insure and the options available.
21 What are the risks?

New Zealand is in an earthquake zone. Although New Zealand has been fortunate in
experiencing few severely damaging earthquakes in recent times, that good fortune will not
last forever. Specifically, there has been an average of 26 earthquakes per year in New
Zealand of intensity M 5.0" or more, an average of one earthquake of intensity M 7.0 every 10

years, and an average of one earthquake of M 8.0 or more once every 100 years;.2

Flood damage in New Zealand is becoming more prevalent. New Zealand has over a 100
towns and cities located on flood plains, and on average a major flood in New Zealand occurs
every eight months.? In addition, increasing population and land use has increased exposure
in areas prone to flooding, and many consider that anthropogenic climate change is making
the flood risk worse.

New Zealand also has a recent history (in geological terms) of intense volcanic activity.

This includes the world’s biggest volcanic eruption in the last 5,000 years (Taupo, 1,800 years
ago) and a coastline subject to tsunamis (GNS estimate about 10 tsunamis of wave height of
more than five metres since 1840).*

Not surprisingly given the above, the chances of asset damage or loss due to a New Zealand
natural disaster over a 10 year time frame are relatively high. It is not a case of “if’ but
“when”. There are also the ongoing risks associated with storm damage (from wind, hail or
snow) and fire.

2.2 How insurance can be of value to local authorities

The first role of insurance is to provide a transfer of risk from the insured to the insurer, which
for a local authority exposed to the risks described above is clearly desirable. The insurer is
also providing the insured with a claims management service, which can save the local
authority money because the insurer has the expertise to settle claims on more favourable
terms and is better equipped to make third party recoveries. The third reason for a local

authority to use insurance is that it makes its budgets easier to manage.

' In approximate terms, an M 5.0 earthquake releases energy equivalent to one Hiroshima bomb, an M 7.0
earthquake releases energy equivalent to 1,000 Hiroshima bombs, and an M 8.0 earthquake releases energy
equivalent to 32,000 Hiroshima bombs.

% Source: GNS website.
® Source: Ministry of Environment website.

* Source: GNS website.

. Benefits of LAPP
economics May 2010
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2.3 Asset cover required

After a disaster Central Government provides local authorities with different levels of support
for different types of assets (more details below). The repair or replacement of these assets
carry various levels of financial burden and urgency. Local authority assets that may require
some cover are considered in four groups. These groups are: (1) water management assets;

(2) parks; (3) roading; (4) buildings and other investments.
2.3.1 Water management assets

Water management assets means the infrastructure for fresh water, stormwater and
sewerage, and the assets used for flood protection such as stopbanks and floodgates. For
asset protection purposes, water management assets are best dealt with separately from the
other assets of a local authority. Under certain conditions, 60 percent of the cover required by

local authorities for water management assets is provided by Central Government.

Before 1991, Central Government took full responsibility for all costs associated with the
restoration of a local authority’s water management assets. Since then, as set out in the
Guide to the National Civil Defence Emergency Management Plan®, the responsibility for
replacing or repairing these assets, beyond a certain threshold, is shared 60:40 between

Central and Local Government.

Local authorities have significant investments in water management assets that are at-risk in
the event of a disaster. The total value of the water management assets of the 59 members
in LAPP is over $15 billion, with the value of individual members’ water management assets
ranging from $16 million to $2.0 billion. On average, LAPP’'s members have water
management assets of $260 million.

The cost of repairing/replacing these assets following a catastrophic event would be beyond
any one council’s means to absorb.® Central Government requires councils to prove their
ability to raise 40 percent before contributing 60 percent. It is therefore necessary for councils
to have a mechanism in place to fund their 40 percent share.

2.3.2 Parks

A product of nature, parks (excluding park buildings) are generally not insured.

° The Guide to the National Civil Defence Emergency Management Plan states that beyond a threshold, Central
Government will pay 60 percent of restoration costs with Local Government responsible for the remaining 40 percent.
This 60 percent contribution from Central Government will only be available when the local authority can demonstrate
that the damaged assets have been properly maintained and that it can meet the remaining 40 percent.

® EQC is a Crown Owned Entity providing cover for earthquake and other natural disasters. EQC on certain
conditions will pay out on claims from residential property owners for damage caused by earthquake, natural landslip,
volcanic eruption, hydrothermal activity, and tsunami; in the case of residential land, a storm or flood; or fire caused
by any of these. However, EQC does not cover damage to a local authority’s water management assets.

. Benefits of LAPP
economics May 2010
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2.3.3 Roading assets

State highways are maintained by Central Government. All other public roads and bridges
are the responsibility of local authorities. However, it is generally understood (and this is what
has happened in the past) that, in the event of a sizeable disaster the NZTA (New Zealand
Transport Agency) will contribute appropriately.

2.3.4 Buildings and other investments

Local authority buildings include civic centres, swimming pools, community halls, sports
facilities, pensioner housing, museums and libraries. Other investments include building
contents, vehicles, and other insurable assets. Cover for these assets have typically been

placed with private insurers, inciuding Civic Assurance.
24 Options for securing cover

Cover is not required for parks or roads, so is not discussed further here. Cover for local
authority water management assets is discussed below. Cover for buildings and other
investments is available through insurance companies and now through LAPP, and this is

discussed later.

Mechanisms for protecting local authority water management assets that would meet Central
Government requirements for them to contribute their 60 percent, as explained above, are
through:

» LAPP
¢ self-insurance by setting up one’s own reserve fund

* private insurance.

A variation of self-insurance is to open a line of credit with a bank contingent on a disaster of
a minimum size. While this may meet with Central Government requirements for paying its
60 percent share, we do not consider this a viable option. [t is not really an acceptable risk
management approach because if a disaster occurs the local authority will be saddled with
significant debt to replace assets at a time when it will be facing other unbudgeted costs.
Similarly, doing nothing and meeting costs out of existing operational expenditure, if
reasonably priced cover could have been obtained, is not a valid risk management approach

when the size of the potential loss is high.

The LAPP, self-insurance and private insurance options are analysed in section 4.

. Benefits of LAPP
economics May 2010
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3 LAPP

This section describes LAPP and its perceived benefits, and provides a description of the
Fund’s current status.

3.1 What is LAPP?

LAPP is a cash accumulation mutual pool. The LAPP Fund was established in 1993 to help
local authority members pay for their share of infrastructure repair/replacement costs for
“generally uninsurable essential” services’ damaged by natural disaster.® LAPP is a

charitable trust governed by a Board of Trustees and is administered by Civic Assurance.

LAPP continues to provide cover for local authority water management assets. More recently
however, the Trustees of LAPP introduced as an option exclusive to local authorities and
CCOs (Council Controlled Organisations) the ability to be covered by LAPP for their
buildings,’ contents thereof, and business interruption cover. To date, covers such as these

have typically been placed with private insurers, including Civic Assurance.

LAPP does not provide liability cover, which is offered to local authorities and CCOs by
Riskpool. It does not provide protection for events such as embezzlement, rural firefighting
costs, or machinery breakdown, which are available through Civic Assurance using bespoke
insurance wordings.

LAPP covers water management assets through a fund that members contribute to annually.
The rate is set by the LAPP Board, with additional cover secured by a dedicated reinsurance
programme. This cover is designed to dovetail with the cover provided by Central
Government. The Fund currently stands at approximately $40,000,000 and LAPP’s
reinsurance cover at $103,000,000.

The other covers are priced annually according to the best estimate of expected risk. It is
expected that LAPP’s non-profit, non-tax paying status means that “more can be offered for
less” when compared to what is available through private insurers. ™

” The Fund was designed to cover local authority owned water management assets that, at the time LAPP was
launched, were considered 'generally uninsurable’. These include: water reticulation, treatment and storage; sewage
reticulation and treatment; stormwater drainage; dams and canals; flood protection schemes including stopbanks and
floodgates; seawalls and harbor risks such as buoys, beacons and uninsurable foreshore lighthouses. Roads and
bridges are not covered by the Fund as local authorities have access to subsidies through NZTA.

® Perils included but were not necessarily limited to earthquakes, storms, floods, cyclones, tornados, volcanic
eruptions, tsunamis and other disasters of a catastrophic nature such as a major gas explosion.

° Examples are civic centres, swimming pools, community halls, pensioner housing, museums and libraries.

“ltis possible that an insurance company targeting cash flow above profit could undercut LAPP's price, but this
cannot be maintained indefinitely and claims presented to such an insurer may not be dealt with satisfactorily.

. Benefits of LAPP
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3.2 Benefits of LAPP

In the early 1990s, a working party formed from various Local Government interest groups
looked at a number of options for covering water management assets. The working party
selected a mutual assistance scheme structured as a charitable trust, which is what LAPP is,

as the most appropriate vehicle for covering local authority water management assets.

Ownership

The management of the scheme’s assets, their security, and control of the claims processes
is retained by Local Government. Decisions are made in the best interests of the members,

and that means a willingness to accommodate claims.
Structure

There is much greater certainty of costs and cover in a mutual assistance scheme compared
to the uncertainties of the insurance cycle. Furthermore, operating with other local authorities
offers better opportunities for the sector to collect risk management data and implement

improved risk management practices.

Cost effectiveness

There are no profit motives or commissions with LAPP. As a charitable trust, all investment
income is tax exempt. Overheads and administrative costs as a percentage of income are

well below those that apply to private insurers resulting in lower costs for members.

As the Fund has grown, (a) its ability to self-insure has grown and (b) members have further
benefited through discounted contributions made possible by the Fund’s investment income.
Members also benefit because LAPP bulk-buys just the one reinsurance programme that

covers the water management assets of all members.

Retention of equity

In the absence of claims, the contributions (less administration and reinsurance costs) are
retained as equity. This, and the Fund’s un-taxed investment income, is what have allowed
the mutual fund to build to its current level.

Early notification of rates

Beginning in 2010, LAPP’s members will be notified of the underlying contribution rates in
October/ November for the contributions due in July the following year. This helps councils
with their budgeting. Also helping with budgeting, is that LAPP, unlike Riskpool but just like a

private insurer, can never have a call on members.

7 Y . Benefits of LAPP
ey} economics May 2010
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3.3 Current situation

Currently 59 of the 85 local authorities are members of LAPP. Fund equity is approximately
$40 million. This has been built up since 1993 from member contributions and investment
income from the Fund. Insurance claims are met from a combination of assets in the Fund
and reinsurance purchased on the global market.

Current contributions are set at a level that covers the expected risk, ongoing administration
costs and re-insurance premiums. They are then adjusted to allow for investment income and
other factors. Share of contribution is in proportion to the member authority’s share of asset
value covered and assessed natural hazard risk. New members to LAPP would also pay a
one-off contribution to the Fund.""

Over time, member contributions and deductibles have generally been falling while values

covered have more than doubled and, in some instances, more than trebled.

Since 1993, LAPP has built its funds up to a very comfortable level. It has developed a good
track record and gained experience and expertise, especially around natural hazard risks in
New Zealand and how they might affect local authority infrastructure assets. LAPP reviews
each member’s water management assets with on-site visits at least every four years and
continues to work closely with the Institute of Geological and Nuclear Sciences (GNS) and the
National Institute for Water and Atmospheric Research (NIWA).

3.3.1 Increased benefit from more members
It is in the interest of the Fund and its members to increase its cover to all of New Zealand.

As in most risk-sharing arrangements, LAPP would benefit from having more local authorities
join, which is why new members seeking cover for their water management assets pay a
reduced new entrant contribution. Additional members spread the risk over a wider
geographic area, meaning a reduction in the relative impact on the Fund of a large claim.
Increased membership does not necessarily require an increase in the absolute level of
reinsurance cover as, in many instances, the current cover would remain sufficient for any
individual or group of councils affected by a disaster. Finally, the administration costs would
be proportionally less, meaning lower costs for all members.

' For 2009/10 this was set at 5.4 years’ of one year's undiscounted contribution for that member.

. Benefits of LAPP
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4 Analysis

Section 4.1 looks at the various options for meeting Central Government’s requirement for a

mechanism to ensure a local authority can cover 40 percent of the costs of damage to its

water management assets. It then relates these to LAPP. Section 4.2 extends the analysis

to look at what is available for covering local authority buildings and contents.

The analysis shows that LAPP is the most effective approach for protecting local authority

water management assets and local authority buildings and contents over the long term.

4.1.1 Private insurance of water management assets

Private insurers can cover individuals and businesses
against natural disasters. In 2009, insurers paid out around
$6 million for five events. In 2008, the figure was $86 million
across six events."

Since LAPP was launched in 1993, private insurance has
become available for the cover of local authority water
management assets. Claimed benefits of private insurers
over LAPP include:

+ cover up to the maximum sum insured is guaranteed
» customised or additional coverage can be included

« the degree of solvency of insurers is known."

Disadvantages of private insurers include:

« clients are exposed to insurance market forces, some of
which will be unwelcome: possibilities on renewal are
large premium increases and additional policy exclusions

« premiums are loaded to cover other costs such as
marketing and shareholder profit

» there is no guarantee that the policy when it expires can
be renewed (let alone on similar terms)

« premiums paid remain with the insurer

« insurance ‘small print' can mean payments of claims are

contested, reduced or refused.

Case Study - Waituna West Rural
Water Supply

As a result of the 2004 Manawatu
floods, a change in the meander

71

path of Kiwitea stream left the |

Waituna West intake structure on
dry land, rendering it ineffective. A
temporary structure was installed
downstream and a claim to install
a new intake structure in a nearby
location was made to LAPP.

Although the structure itself was
not damaged, LAPP paid out on a
claim to build a new intake in a
new location.

This case reflects the vagaries of
natural disasters, uncertainty about
what may occur, and LAPP’s
willingness to pay.

Whether a private insurer would
have paid out is open to
discussion. We are advised that
most policy wordings would not
have covered such an event, so
with a private insurer it is unlikely
the claim would have been
accepted. Where circumstances
mean that a policy wording with a
private insurer is ambiguous, we
suggest it could require significant
effort in terms of arguing for the
claim to be paid.

12 |nsurance Council of New Zealand. The Cost of Disaster Events. Dollar values are in 2007 $m. Downloaded

from www.icnz.org.nz/current/weather/ on 20 April 2010.

3 But not necessarily for surviving a major catastrophe, where an insurance company's financial strength will depend
on how much reinsurance it has bought. A reinsurance cap based on a 1 in 250 year event, which is a typical testing
point for rating agencies, will obviously be quite different from one based on a 1 in 1,000 year event.

@ economics
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Looking at the claimed advantages of private insurance and how they compare to LAPP:

* LAPP covers members up to the amount identified on their asset share register,
giving certainty to the amount that will be recovered in the case of a disaster.

* LAPP can provide customised coverage in terms of what is included on the insured
asset register in terms of what is covered, what is not, and to what level. For
example, LAPP can offer CCOs up to 100 percent of replacement for their water
management assets rather than 40 percent, which is an issue because CCOs are
currently not eligible for the 60 percent contribution from Central Government

* LAPP has been operating for a significant period and has a track record. In April this
year, it received a credit rating of A (Excellent) stable from AM Best.

A small number of councils currently use private insurance for protecting their water
management assets. Notwithstanding very large deductibles, these tend to be expensive.
They are expensive because there is a minimum cost of capacity akin to the fee required for
providing a line of credit. Also, individual councils cannot get the bulk discount from a private
insurer that LAPP obtains from its reinsurers. For these and other reasons™ we do not
believe that a premium offered by a private insurer that is cheaper than LAPP would be

sustainable, especially if claims are made.

The nature of the insurance industry means that private insurers can use marginal pricing for
their premium calculations to attract new business. However, over the longer-term, or sooner
if significant claims are made, these premiums will have to increase to reflect the true costs of
the insurer and return a profit.

LAPP does not pay tax on contributions or investments; does not attempt to return a profit;
and has lower administration costs. Its equity fund is currently at a comfortable level and so it

is not looking at collecting higher contributions specifically to grow the Fund."®
4.1.2 Self-insurance of water management assets — use of own reserve fund

Self-insurance is a risk management method in which a calculated amount of money is set

aside to compensate for the potential future loss. In general, money is set aside using

“ Local authority water management assets are a very small class of business within the insurance industry in New
Zealand. This is in part because of LAPP but also because a significant proportion of non-LAPP members have no
cover. It would be difficult to identify actual breakdowns for the insurance industry in this class without individual
insurance company information, but it is thought the insurance market is well below $2 million per annum in a total
insurance market for New Zealand of around $3.5 billion per annum. Furthermore, it is relatively new. An earlier
analysis (BERL, 2010) of insurance industry costs (in the liability class between 2002 and 2008 in New Zealand)
suggests that operational costs and profits accounted for around 60 percent of premiums with the remaining 40
percent going to settlements. If that were the case, then premiums lower than LAPP's member contributions would
not be sustainable and insurance companies would be assumed to be pricing their premiums below the margin.

' Although, as would be the case with private insurers, if the Fund reduced due to claims, it would look to restore the
Fund to an appropriate level through reduced discounts on member contributions. Moreover, while there is currently
no target level for the Fund, growth of the actual Fund size would resuit in lower costs to members in the future.

) Benefits of LAPP
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expected claim assumptions with an appropriate safety margin so that the amount set aside
over time should be enough to cover the future uncertain loss.

By retaining, calculating risks, and paying the resulting claims from captive or on-balance
sheet financial provisions, the overall process can be cheaper than buying commercial

insurance from an insurance company.

A number of other benefits have been identified for self-insurance:

« premiums are retained, which would otherwise be paid and lost to the insurer

» the fund can be built up and earn interest

« there is certainty that claims will be paid as the local authority makes its own decisions
« the local authority can adjust its premiums depending upon its circumstances
 inevitably there is an improved focus on risk management

« there is no cross subsidisation of risk, especially with higher risk councils.”

There are also disadvantages to self-insurance:

«+ the fund in early years will be insufficient to meet a major claim and it takes a long time to
build up critical mass

« even if the fund has reached critical mass, this is unlikely to be the case once a major
claim is met. Self-insurance performs poorly when major claims are back-to-back.

« changes in circumstances could see contributions being reduced or the fund raided for
other purposes.

In most respects, LAPP is a self-insurance approach but with the risks spread across a
number of members as opposed to only one. This means that most of the benefits of self-
insurance are retained (apart from the ability to make one’s own call on claims' or adjust

premiums) yet most of the disadvantages of self-insurance are overcome.

If members leave LAPP, they forfeit any right to the assets of the Fund. However, if they
remain to the end, then they will eventually realise their contribution. In reality, a council
should not be able to access disaster funds (except following a disaster) as they are there for
a specific purpose. Similarly, in terms of the flexibility to increase or decrease contributions,
LAPP provides discipline in terms of the level of contributions required to insure the assets.
Further, LAPP aims to “flatline” contributions as far as possible, making it easier for members

to budget for their risk financing.

'® \We would argue that there is no cross-subsidisation within LAPP. The approach to setting annual contributions for
each member is based on the asset value covered and the risk or exposure of that asset within the Fund.

7 Although being owned by its members, there is a willingness to pay out on claims.

. N . Benefits of LAPP
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LAPP has built up its Fund over 17 years, and its retained equity is now at a level where,
when combined with re-insurance and Central Government contributions, there is a very low
risk that a major claim or series of claims can extinguish it."® With 59 members spread across

New Zealand, the risk of a natural disaster affecting all of its members is slim.

Catastrophic risks described as self-insured are probably more accurately described as not
insured. Catastrophic risks are highly unpredictable and high in loss value, and are normally

underwritten by the reinsurance or wholesale insurance market.

In terms of whether to seif-insure or join LAPP, any thorough analysis of benefits and costs
would suggest that LAPP is the preferred option."®

4.1.3 Role of Central Government in replacing/repairing water management assets

Although Central Government retains discretion as to whether they will cover 60 percent of
repairing or replacing damaged “essential” services owned by Local Government, we believe
they currently have every intention to contribute.

To date, Central Government has delivered, but in cases Case Study — Rotorua Wastewater
. . Treatment Plant
where councils consider that they may not be covered,
Rotorua has the largest effluent
cover of 100 percent can be arranged through LAPP or a spray irrigation system in the

private insurer. In any case, CCOs, who are currently not ptiietiliomisohers)

. . . The Rotorua Wastewater
eligible for Central Government contributions for replacing Treatment Plant, in an effort to
or repairing water management assets, must go reduce the amount of algae in

P 9 9 g Lake Rotorua, pumps treated
uninsured or find cover elsewhere. effluent 3.3km  uphill (120m

vertical) to Whakarewarewa Forest
where it is spray irrigated onto

You could also argue that local authorities have a better about 380 hectares.
chance of receiving government support for damage to This is a key part of RDC's
. (Rotorua District Council)
water management assets if they are a member of LAPP. sewerage treatment plant but
The Fund's structure is recognised by Central would  Central  Government
contribute 60 percent to its
Government and Central Government has not rejected replacement in the event of a
disaster?

any claims accepted by LAPP.

LAPP continues to liaise with Central Government to explore ways to create greater certainty
for local authorities. There is not an issue regarding the 40 percent cover from LAPP

because LAPP simply covers whatever was included in the member’s agreed asset schedule.

*® The current fund size and its reinsurance mean that LAPP has the ability to provide support to members for an
initial claim of up to $143 million, which is 40 percent of $357 million. Automatic reinstatement of LAPP’s reinsurance
means that even if the first claim exhausted the fund, LAPP when combined with Central Government's contribution
could still meet a second claim of $257 million. LAPP's PML (Probable Maximum Loss) is estimated at $260 million.

* For example, the business case analysis recently done by one of LAPP’s newer members. This member had
established an Emergency Capital Replacement Fund, which it had built up to just over $5 million, for dealing with a
risk with a PML assessed at over $50 million. After paying its new entrant fee to join LAPP the bulk of the $5 million
was freed up and the council then had full cover for its water management assets.

. Benefits of LAPP
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4.2 Cover for local authority buildings etc

LAPP offers the same cover for local authority buildings etc as a private insurance company,
but without the profit motive or the need to recover the same level of overheads. The benefits
of using LAPP are listed in section 3.2 of this report.

4.3 Why all councils are not part of LAPP

Based on the above arguments one would question why all potential members have not
joined LAPP, particularly when the benefits appear so clear cut. Part of the reason is

historical and part of it is due to the geographic make up of individual councils.

in the early years of LAPP, the size of the Fund was obviously small. Although LAPP’s ability
to pay claims was supported with reinsurance, some local authorities remained concerned
that the Fund would be insufficient if a significant disaster occurred, particularly if there were
back-to-back large claims. In those days earthquake risks outside of the known high-risk
areas were not well understood, nor were the risks from tsunamis and volcanoes (lava and
ash fall). Water management assets had not been insured before, and low-risk councils were

concerned they might be subsidising high-risk councils.

Once LAPP was established the new obstacle to members joining was the requirement to pay
back contributions as if the new member had been a member since 1993. That obstacle was

removed in 2005 by the introduction of a fairer formula.

Some local authorities cover a very wide area with small populations. As a result, the
underground assets are less costly and relatively dispersed. The potential for a disaster to
affect a significant proportion of assets is low and these councils take a calculated risk that

they should be able to cover most incidents through their own operations.

Over time, as LAPP has developed a track record, most of these issues have been resolved.
LAPP has been operating for 17 years and has built a Fund of $40 million, which, with
reinsurance, is sufficient to cover all but the most extreme events. As discussed earlier in the
report, all members contribute based on their own risk and asset values so there is no cross
subsidisation. There is still a case for low-risk councils to consider not joining, but because

their risk is low, the cost for them to participate in the Fund is low, making it a viable option.

When LAPP was set up, natural disaster cover through a private insurer for underground
assets was basically unavailable. Ironically, the success of LAPP has seen private insurers
enter the market and there is now a private market for the insurance of underground assets
that competes against LAPP. However, as we have argued, LAPP is a better option for local

authorities over the long-term, even in terms of cost.

N . Benefits of LAPP
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5 Conclusions

This report provides a clear case for local authorities to ensure they have provided for
restoring their water management assets in the case of a natural disaster. With Central
Government requiring a contribution from local authorities and proof in advance of their ability
to fund that contribution, the case is even stronger.

The three main options for a local authority to meet its 40 percent obligation for protecting its
water management assets are:

* private insurance
* self-insurance
* LAPP.

In comparison to self-insurance, LAPP is clearly the superior option. LAPP provides much of
the same advantages as self-insurance in terms of ownership, tax and profits, retention of
premiums, and claims management. Yet LAPP is a cheaper option, spreads the risk, and
provides a disciplined approach to ensuring adequate resources will be available to deal with
a disaster.

It would be unusual but possible that private insurance for water management assets on a
like-for-like basis might appear in some instances to be cheaper than LAPP. However, in
making such a comparison it needs to be factored in that any postponement in joining LAPP
could see an increase in LAPP’s new entrant fee. Private insurance that was cheaper than
LAPP is not thought to be sustainable because private insurers need to make a profit, pay tax
on that profit, and meet higher administration costs.

The benefits of using LAPP for protecting local authority buildings and contents etc compared

to using private insurance are listed in section 3.2 of this report.

LAPP now has a track record, having provided effective cover for its members for 17 years. It
has built up a Fund of $40 million and has in-depth experience around natural disaster risk
assessment and management for local authority infrastructure in New Zealand. It has a credit
rating of A (Excellent) from the rating agency AM Best.

LAPP’s members currently account for around 70 percent of local authorities in New Zealand.
Expanding its membership can only make LAPP a better vehicle for local authorities to

effectively deal with their responsibilities for protecting their infrastructure assets.

. Benefits of LAPP
economics May 2010
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THIS DEED is made the 14th day of December 2007

BETWEEN NEW ZEALAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION
INCORPORATED, a society incorporated in Wellington pursuant to
the Incorporated Societies Act 1908 (“the Settlor”)

AND ROBERT DAVID RENNIE ELLIOTT of Gisborne, formerly Chief
Executive Officer now retired, WYNNE ARCHDALL RAYMOND,
formerly Mayor now retired, IAN ROBERT FLOCKHART
MCKELVIE, Mayor of Manawatu, KINSLEY NEVILLE SAMPSON
of New Plymouth, formerly General Manager now Company
Director, DALE ALWYN LOTT of North Shore City, Auckland,
Accountant, and LANGLEY DAVID CAVERS of Hauraki District,
District Manager (together “the Trustees”)

WHEREAS

A The Settlor established a fund for the reinstatement of lost or damaged
generally uninsurable local government infrastructure known as the
New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund, by Deed
of Trust dated 29 June 1993 (“the Establishment Trust Deed")

B Only those Local Authorities that are contributing to the fund are to be
eligible for distributions in the event of loss or damage to their infrastructure.

C  The Fund is to be accumulated and applied for the purpose by the Trustees in
accordance with this Trust Deed.

D The Trust Deed provides that the Trustees may amend the Trust Deed by
unanimous resolution of the Trustees present at any validly convened
meeting, provided such amendment is not inconsistent with the charitable
scope of the trusts contained in the Trust Deed.

E  The Trust Deed was amended by Deeds of Variation dated
14 February 1997 and 5 June 2003, both times with the consent of the
Settlor as required by the Establishment Trust Deed.

F Atameeting of the Trustees held on 9 November 2007 the Trustees resolved
that:

(@) the Trust Deed would be further amended, and

(b)  such amendments would be incorporated into this deed once the
consent of the Settlor had been obtained.

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES AND IT IS AGREED AND
DECLARED AS FOLLOWS:

1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

Each of the following words and expressions shall, unless the context
otherwise requires, have the following meanings, as indicated:

“the Act” means the Charitable Trusts Act 1957;
“Administration Manager” means the person appointed to that office;

“Advisory Trustee” means any advisory trustee appointed pursuant to
clause 3.1.8;

“Alternative Trustee” means any alternate trustee appointed pursuant
to clause 3.1.3;

“Annual Accounts” means statements of income and expenditure and
balance sheets of the Fund prepared or to be prepared in accordance
with the provisions of this Trust Deed;

“Annual Contribution” means the annual payment to the Fund made
by each Member in return for Coverage by the Fund for a Fund Year:

"“Asset Value” means the cost of reinstatement of a Member’s
Infrastructure as determined pursuant to clause 7.1.1¢);
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“Auditor” means the office of auditor or auditors to the Fund for the
time being;

“Commencement Date” means 1 July 1993;

“Coverage” means protection for the cost of reinstatement of the
Members’ Infrastructure required as a result of a Damaging Event:

“Damaging Event” includes flooding, earthquake, volcanic eruptions
(including the effects of volcanic ash), storm surge, tsunami, wildfire,
gas explosion, hail, snow, wind damage, landslide, lahar and any other
sudden event or sudden situation causing serious disruption, loss or
damage to infrastructure;

“Deductible” means any uninsured first amount of any loss or damage
following a Damaging Event that the Trustees determine shall be borne
by the Member;

“Distribution” means payment, made to a Member from the Fund,
consequent upon their Coverage;

“Extraordinary Contribution” means any contribution to the Fund which
a Member is required to make as:

(i acondition of their entry to membership of the Fund at any time
after the Commencement Date; or

(i) any contribution for Coverage for any part or portion of a year;

“Fund” means the New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme
Disaster Fund, established by the Establishment Trust Deed;

“Fund Year” means each year of the Fund commencing on 1 July and
ending on 30 June in the calendar year following;

“Infrastructure” means any asset accepted as such by the Trustees and
registered with the Trustees for Coverage for which a Local Authority
has an insurable interest and may include reticulation, storage and
treatment facilities (water, sewage, stormwater); tunnels other than
road tunnels; dams; canals; stopbanks; flood control protection works;
drainage works; detention ponds; sea walls; and harbour risks (including
buoys, beacons and foreshore lighthouses).

“Investment Manager” means any person to whom the Trustees have
contracted the investment of some or all of the assets of the Fund
pursuant to clause 4.1.1(b);

“Local Authority” means any New Zealand Local Authority or
Territorial Authority or Regional Council as defined in section 5 of the
Local Government Act 2002, and includes any Council-Controlled
Organisation as defined by section 6 of that Act.

“Member” means any Local Authority admitted as a member of the
Fund, the membership of which has not been terminated.

“Participation Deed” means the agreements so called entered into by
Local Authorities on admission to membership of the Fund;

“Stated Value” means the Member's estimate of the reinstatement value
of its infrastructure.

“the Trustees” means the trustees named in this Trust Deed (until
removed from office), any new trustees appointed either pursuant to
clause 3.1.2 or clause 3.1.6, any Alternate Trustees appointed pursuant
to clause 3.1.3 and any Advisory Trustees appointed pursuant to clause
3.1.8 collectively.

“written” or “in writing” includes printing, engraving, lithography,
telegraphy, facsimile or any other communication by written word.

Interpretation
Words importing any one gender shall include the other.
Plurals shall include the singular and vice versa.

Reference to persons shall include body corporates.
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1.2.4

1.2.5

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.4

2.1.5

2.1.6

Reference to any Act of Parliament shall be deemed to include 3

every amendment or re-enactment of it and every Act of Parliament

substituted for it, and any regulations made under the Act. 31
3.1.1

All references in this Trust Deed, or to provisions or clauses of this

Trust Deed, shall be deemed to be references to this Trust Deed and to
those provisions or clauses as altered from time to time pursuant to the
provisions of this Trust Deed.

Except as otherwise defined in this Trust Deed, the terms used in this
Trust Deed which have been defined in the Act shall have the same

meaning as ascribed to those terms in the Act. 312
CONSTITUTION OF THE FUND
New Zealand Local Authority Protection Programme 3.1.3
Disaster Fund
A fund is hereby established by the New Zealand Local Government
Association Incorporated, with the charitable purposes set out in
clause 2.1.3.
The name of the fund shall be the New Zealand Local Authority
Protection Programme Disaster Fund. 314
The charitable purposes of the Fund shall be:
(@) To assist New Zealand local government to carry out its
responsibilities under central government’s disaster recovery
policies and plans; and
(b) To provide funds for Members for the purpose of reinstatement of
lost or damaged Infrastructure as a resuft of Damaging Events; and
(¢) To facilitate effective programmes to enable New Zealand local
government to identify and manage risks to their Infrastructure
by minimising and reducing the exposure, limiting the risks and
diminishing the potential for loss or damage; and
(d) To provide Members with the capacity for self-help to recover from
consequences of Damaging Events; and
(¢) To do anything else which the Trustees may think is conducive or
incidental to the attainment of the above charitable purposes. 3.1.5
There are no non-charitable purposes for the Fund.
The Fund shall consist of all property for the time being held by or on
behalf of the Trustees, derived from:
(@) Any gifts or donations; 316
(b) Extraordinary Contributions;
() Annual Contributions;
(d) Income from investments;
(e) Proceeds of realisation of investments;
(f)  Any policies or contracts of re-insurance;
(@) Any recoveries;
(h)  Any other source.
The Fund shall be held in trust by the Trustees upon the trusts and
for the charitable purposes contained in this Trust Deed and shall be
managed, administered and applied by the Trustees, in accordance
with the powers contained in this Trust Deed, in order to attain those 317

charitable purposes.

The Trustees are and shall remain responsible for the safe custody of

all money, policies, certificates and other documents of title and value
in connection with the Fund and for the safe custody, realisation and
distribution of all of the assets from the Fund, from time to time vested
in them.
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TRUSTEES
Appointment and Removal of Trustees

The number of Trustees shall be not less than four nor more than
six. The Trustees shall be one or two appointees of the Settlor; one
or two appointees of the New Zealand Local Government Insurance
Corporation Limited; and one or two appointees of the NZ Society
of Local Government Managers Incorporated (together called the

“ Appointors”).

The power of appointing new Trustees shall be vested in the Appointors
each of which shall have the power to appoint two persons as Trustees
and they having been appointed as Trustees to remove and/or replace
them, by notice in writing given to the Administration Manager.

The Appointors shall be entitled to appoint any person as an Alternative
Trustee in place of any Trustee appointed by them, by notice in writing
given to the Administration Manager, either for a specified period, or
for a specified meeting or any part of a meeting, or for any particular
subject matter at any meeting, or generally during the absence of any
such Trustee, and from time to time, in the same manner, to remove any
Alternate Trustee.

An Alternate Trustee appointed pursuant to clause 3.1.3 shall:

(a) not be remunerated otherwise than out of the remuneration of the
Trustee in whose place the Alternate Trustee acts;

(b) be deemed to have automaticaily vacated office when the Trustee
in whose place the Alternate Trustee acts vacates office;

(0 unless otherwise provided by the terms of appointment of the
Alternate Trustee, have the same rights, powers and privileges
(including without limitation, the right to receive notice of
meetings of Trustees, the power to sign resolutions of Trustees
and the power to witness the affixing of the common seal) as the
Trustee in whose place the Alternate Trustee is appointed;

(d) discharge all the duties of, and be subject to the same provisions in
this Trust Deed as the Trustee in whose place the Alternate Trustee
acts.

The Administration Manager shall within seven days of it being notified
in writing of the appointment, removal or resignation of a Trustee give

to every Member and Appointor (other than an Appointor exercising its
powers of appointment or removal) written notice of the appointment,
removal or resignation of the Trustee.

Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 3.1.2 of this Trust Deed, if any
Appointor shall fail at any time to exercise its power of appointment
and notify the Administration Manager in writing accordingly, within
fourteen days of:

(a) it being notified in writing of the removal or resignation of their
appointee; or

(b) it becoming aware of the occurrence of another event which
creates a vacancy (as provided for in clause 3.1.7); and

(¢) the number of Trustees falls below four —
then the Trustees shall forthwith appoint further or additional
Trustees on behalf of any Appointors so failing, so as to ensure
there are not less than four nor more than six Trustees and every
Trustee then appointed may thereafter only be removed by
unanimous resolution of the Trustees.

A vacancy in the office of Trustee shall arise if:
(@) a Trustee is adjudged bankrupt; or

(b) a Trustee resigns by notice in writing to the Administration
Manager, or

(¢) a Trustee refuses to act; or



3.2

322

3.24

(d)  aTrustee becomes of unsound mind; or becomes subject to a
property order under the Protection of Personal and Property
Rights Act, 1988; or

(e)  aTrustee is removed by their Appointor in accordance with the
provisions of this Trust Deed; or

() aTrustee is otherwise removed by operation of law.

The Trustees shall have power to appoint any person at any time as

an Advisory Trustee to the Fund, and to prescribe the function of such
Advisory Trustee. An Advisory Trustee shall not be counted in the
number of Trustees required by clause 3.1.1, or in the quorum required
for meetings of the Trustees, nor be entitled to vote thereat.

Meetings of Trustees

The Trustees shall from time to time meet for the despatch of business
of the Fund, and subject to the provisions of this Trust Deed and
particularly this clause 3.2 shall have the power to adjourn or otherwise
regulate their meetings and proceedings, and vary the regulation and
procedure of such meetings and proceedings, as the Trustees think fit.

Questions arising at any meeting of the Trustees shall be determined by
a majority of the votes of those present and voting.

(@)  The Trustees shall at their inaugural meeting and again before
the end of each Fund Year elect one of their number to be the
chairman of Trustees for the ensuing Fund Year. The person so
elected shall hold office as chairman of Trustees during the ensuing
Fund Year, and shall be eligible for re-appointment.

(b)  The person so appointed shall chair all meetings of the Trustees
at which they are present. If at any meeting the chairman is not
present within fifteen minutes of the appointed time for holding
the meeting the Trustees present shall then choose one of their
number to be the chairman of that meeting.

(c) A chairman shall not be entitled to a second or casting vote,

Every meeting of the Trustees shall be called by giving not less than
seven days notice in writing to the Trustees provided that a meeting of
the Trustees shall be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed
by all the Trustees entitled to attend and vote thereat.

Upon the written request of three Trustees giving notice of the subject
matter of that meeting, the Administration Manager shall summon a
special meeting of the Trustees, within seven days of that request.

Every notice of a meeting of the Trustees shall;

(a)  be given in writing by the Administration Manager to each Trustee
at their last known address;

(b)  be exclusive of the day on which it is served and of the day of the
meeting;

(c)  specify the place, day and hour of the meeting;

(d)  specify, in the case of special business, the general nature of that
business.

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non
receipt of notice of a meeting by, any Trustee shall not invalidate the
proceedings at the meeting.

(@)  No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the Trustees
unless a quorum is present at the time when the meeting proceeds
to business. The quorum for meetings of the Trustees shall be as
fixed by resolution of the Trustees and until so fixed any number
of the Trustees more than one-half of the total number of the
Trustees entitled to vote thereat shall constitute a quorum. Where
one-half in number of the Trustees so entitled to vote is a fraction
it shall be rounded-up to the next whole number and such number
shall be the quorum for a meeting of the Trustees.
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(b)  If within half an hour from the time appointed for a meeting
of the Trustees a quorum is not present the meeting shall stand
adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and
place, and if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present
within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, the
Trustees present shall constitute a quorum.

(& Every Trustee present shall, notwithstanding their conflict between
interest and duty (if any), be counted in a quorum present.

A validly called meeting of the Trustees at which a quorum is present
shall be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and
discretions by or under this Deed vested in or exercisable by the Trustees.

Any Trustee who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly;

(a)  personally interested in a contract or arrangement or any proposed
contract or arrangement with the Trustees or with any Member; or

(b) is an elected member, office or employee of any Member or
proposed Member which is interested —

shall declare the nature of the interest and unless the interest is no
greater than or any different from —

(c) in the case of an interest to which subclause (a) of this clause
applies, that of the other Trustees present; or

(d) on the case of an interest to which subclause (b) of this clause
applies, that of the Members generally,
they shall thereafter take no further part in the deliberations in
respect of that matter.

The foregoing rule shall not operate to prevent any Trustee taking part
in discussions and decisions regarding rules, guidelines, or policies
regarding Annual Contributions.

All disclosures of interest by any Trustee, and whether or not they took
part in discussion on or voted on the matter before the meeting, shall be
recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

(a)  The Trustees may meet by means of a Telephone Meeting, the
Trustees having been given notice of the meeting as required by
the provisions of this Trust Deed.

(b) in this clause:
“Telephone Meeting” means the contemporaneous linking
together by telephone of Trustees comprising a quorum (whether
or not any one or more of those persons is outside New Zealand);
“Telephone” means and indicates any instant electronic means of
communication.

(c)  Before a Telephone Meeting proceeds to business:

(i) each of the Trustees taking part must be able to hear each of
the other Trustees taking part;

(i) the chairman shall ask each Trustee taking part in turn to
respond by way of confirmation that they are in fact linked
to and are taking part in the Telephone Meeting;

(iii)  the chairman shall thereupon announce to the Telephone
Meeting the names of those Trustees who have so
responded.

(d)  The Trustees so named by the chairman shall be conclusively
deemed to be present at the Telephone Meeting and, unless given
permission to leave under subclause (e) of this clause, to have been
present all the time during the Telephone Meeting.

(e)  No Trustee may leave a Telephone Meeting by disconnecting
their telephone unless the chairman has first granted that Trustee
permission to leave.

() A minute of the proceedings at a Telephone Meeting shall be
conclusive evidence of the proceedings and the regularity of the
meeting if certified as a correct minute by the chairman.
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3.3
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3.4
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3.6

3.6.1

3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

Subcommittees

(@) The Trustees may at any time, for any specified purpose, appoint
such of their number as they think fit to be members of any one or
more subcommittees.

(b) Each such subcommittee shall have such powers and duties as are
delegated to it by the Trustees.

3.7.3
() Each such subcommittee shall have power to co-opt such person
or persons whether or not Trustees as the Trustees think fit,
provided that:
(i) in relation to each subcommittee the number of co-opted 4
members shall not exceed the number of Trustees who are
members of the subcommittee; and a1
(i) such co-option shall be subject to the approval of the 4.1.1

Trustees at the first meeting of the Trustees following the
co-option.

(d) The Trustees may appoint a chairman of each subcommittee. f no
such chairman is appointed or if at any meeting the chairman is
not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding
the same, the members of the subcommittee present shall then
choose a chairman of the meeting.

(e) Each subcommittee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper.
Questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a majority
of votes of all those present and voting. In the case of an equality
of votes the chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

Validity of Acts of Trustees

All acts done in good faith at any meeting of the Trustees or any
subcommittees of the Trustees, or by any person acting as a Trustee,
shall, notwithstanding that it shall afterwards be discovered that there
was some defect in the appointment of such Trustee or that such Trustee
was disqualified, be as valid as if every such Trustee had been duly
appointed, and was qualified to be a Trustee.

Resolutions in Writing

A resolution in writing, signed by all of the Trustees entitled to vote
thereon shall be as valid as if it had been passed at a meeting of the
Trustees duly convened and held. Any such resolution may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Trustees so entitled. Any such document sent by a Trustee by
telegram, cable, facsimile, copier, telex or other electronic means of
communication shall be deemed to have been signed by the Trustee.

Remuneration of Trustees

The Trustees shall not make any private pecuniary profit from the Fund,
except that the Trustees shall be entitled to reasonable fees for their
services in respect of the management and administration of the Fund.
The amount of the fees shall be determined from time to time by the
Administration Manager after consultation with the Settlor and the
Trustees.

Indemnity and Limitation of Trustee’s Liability

The Trustees shall be indemnified and shail be entitled to reimburse
themselves out of the Fund in respect of all costs, charges and expenses
which they incur in or about management or administration of the Fund.

No Trustee acting or purporting to act in execution of the trusts created
by this Trust Deed shall be liable for any loss not attributable to their
own dishonesty or their wilful commission of or omission to do any

act known by them to be a breach of trust, and in particular (without
limitation) no Trustee shall incur any liability in respect of:

(@) Any act done or not done in the exercise of or in respect of any
discretion vested in them.

(b)  Anything done or suffered by them in good faith in reliance upon
any advice or opinion (whether or not obtained by the Trustees)
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of any professional person, or upon any advice the Trustees may
obtain directly or indirectly from any company, firm or person as
shall, in the opinion of the Trustees, be qualified to provide advice.

(©  Any failure or refusal to perform or do any act or thing which by
reason or provision of any law of New Zealand they are hindered
or prevented from doing or performing.

No Trustee shall be bound to or be liable for any failure to take any
proceedings against a co-Trustee for any breach or alleged breach of
trust committed by the co-Trustee.

POWERS OF TRUSTEES
General Powers

In addition to the powers conferred by law and elsewhere in this Trust
Deed the Trustees shall have the power:

(a) Subject to clause 5.1.3, from time to time to appoint and remove
the Administration Manager and, subject to the specific duties
imposed on the Administration Manager by this Trust Deed, define
the duties and responsibilities of the Administration Manager,
on terms to be agreed in writing between the Trustees and the
Administration Manager.

(b) From time to time to appoint and remove one or more investment
managers. The Investment Managers shall have such powers and
duties in relation to the investment of the fund as the Trustees
shall determine and agree in writing between the Trustees and the
Investment Managers.

(¢) To appoint and remove a custodian trustee to hold in safe custody
all policies, certificates and other documents of title in connection
with the whole or any part of the Fund, on terms to be agreed in
writing between the Trustees and the custodian trustee.

(d) To otherwise retain the services of professional advisors and
managers in relation to the management, administration and
investment of the Fund, to delegate powers and discretions to
professional advisors and managers as the Trustees see fit, and to
determine and to pay out of the Fund, any fees payable to those
professional advisors and managers.

(e) To make rules or guidelines, and to adopt procedures, consistent
with the provisions of this Trust Deed, including, without
limitation, in relation to membership; calculating and fixing
Asset Values, Deductibles, Extraordinary Contributions, Annual
Contributions and Distributions; determining from time to
time which of a Member’s assets can be registered with the
Trustees as Infrastructure; and to make rules or guidelines and
to adopt procedures as shall be appropriate for the convenient
administration of the Fund.

(f)  To borrow money for the purpose of providing Distributions
where the assets of the Fund are not immediately realizable, or if
realizable are only realizable at a material loss to the Fund, and to
secure the repayment of such moneys in any manner and upon
any terms the Trustees consider advisable, whether by charge
over all or any portion of the Fund or any particular property or
otherwise, provided however the Trustees shall first have had and
obtained the consent in writing of the Settlor thereto and provided
further that in no event shall the amount borrowed exceed the
then estimated values of the assets of the Fund, less any existing
liabilities of the Fund, contingent or otherwise.

(g) To seek reinsurance protection in support of the Fund.

(h) Generally to do all such acts and things as the Trustees may
consider necessary or expedient for the administration,
maintenance and preservation of the Fund and in performance of
their obligations under this Trust Deed.
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Investments Authorised

All moneys belonging to the Fund and available for investment shall be
invested in accordance with the provisions of the Trustee Act 1956 as to
the investment of trust funds.

Exercise of Discretion

The Trustees may exercise or enforce all of the authorities, discretions
and powers vested in them from time to time, and at any time and may
refrain from exercising all or any such powers.

Appointment of Auditor

The Trustees shall from time to time appoint an Auditor (being the
holder of a certificate of public practice issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of New Zealand) of the Fund at a remuneration
to be fixed, and payable, by the Administration Manager, out of the
Fund.

MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION
Appointment of Administration Manager

The Trustees shall appoint an Administration Manager which shall,

in addition to other duties or responsibilities conferred on the
Administration Manager elsewhere in this Trust Deed, and as from time
to time agreed by the Administration Manager with the Trustees:

(a)  Receive applications for membership of the Fund;
(b)  Ascertain and audit the infrastructural assets of Members:

() Issue debit notes for and maintain records of all Annual
Contributions and Extraordinary Contributions paid to the Fund;

(d)  Use its best endeavours to secure economic reinsurance support
of the Fund;

(e) Facilitate effective programmes to enable Members to identify and
manage risks to their Infrastructure by minimising and reducing
the exposure, limiting the risks and diminishing the potential for
damage by Damaging Events;

(f)  Receive and process applications for Distributions, within the scope
of guidelines laid down by the Trustees;

(g)  Furnish the Trustees with full and complete reports of all losses by
and of all payments made out of the Fund;

(h)  Liaise with local government agencies with respect to the
application of their appropriate disaster recovery and emergency
plans;

(i) Make recommendations to the Trustees regarding any matters
pertaining to the administration and management of the Fund;

() Undertake such services as may be required by the Trustees or as
may be reasonably necessary for the management, administration
and investment of the Fund, and the operation of the trusts
contained in this Trust Deed.

The Administration Manager shall be responsible to the Trustees for
the proper management, and administration of the Fund and the trusts
contained in this Trust Deed.

The first Administration Manager shall be the New Zealand Local
Government Insurance Corporation Limited which shall hold office

for an initial term of six years from the Commencement Date (unless
removed earlier) on such terms (including terms relating to performance)
as may be agreed in writing with the Trustees.

Records to be Kept

The Administration Manager shall keep or cause to be kept a complete
record of:

5.3

5.3.1

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.5

5.5.1

LAPP Annual Report 8410 — TRUST DEED

(@)  The membership of the Fund including the dates on which
Members were admitted to membership and when they ceased to
be or were suspended as Members of the Fund.

(b)  Proper records of all meetings, resolutions and decisions of the
Trustees.

(c)  The affairs, matters and transactions of the Fund.

(d)  All other matters, information and data necessary or expedient for
the proper and effective working of the Fund and the operation of
this Trust Deed.

Accounts
The Administration Manager shall ensure that:

(a)  All assets of the Fund are kept separate and apart from any assets
or funds of the Administration Manager, with all moneys received
by the Administration Manager to be banked in a separate bank
account in the name of the Fund;

(b)  Proper books of account are kept in respect of the Fund;

(¢} Annual Accounts are prepared in respect of the Fund, presenting a
true and fair view of the Fund’s financial affairs at the end of each
Fund Year; and

(d)  The Auditor appointed in accordance with the provisions of this
Trust Deed examines and reports upon the Annual Accounts.

Annual Report of the Fund

The Administration Manager shall within six months after the end of
each Fund Year:

(a)  Prepare an Annual Report for the Fund for the previous Fund Year.
(b}  Provide each Member with a copy of the Annual Report.
The following matters shall be contained in the Annual Report:

(a) A statement of numerical changes in the membership of the Fund
during the Fund Year;

(b)  The Annual Accounts for the Fund in respect of the previous Fund
Year;

(¢)  The Auditor’s report on the Annual Accounts;

(d) A statement by the Administration Manager as to whether all the
Annual Contributions and Extraordinary Contributions required to
be made to the Fund in accordance with the Participation Deeds
and this Trust Deed have been made by the Members, and if not
the amount or amounts outstanding;

(e) A summary of any amendments to this Trust Deed that have been
made during the Fund Year;

() The names of and any changes since the last Annual Report in the
Trustees, the Administration Manager, re-insurers, and changes
in any actuaries, auditors and solicitors to the Fund (either by
reference to their own names or the names of their firms);

(@) The name and address of the person to whom all correspondence
from the Members to the Trustees should be sent.

Delegation

Subject to this clause, the Administration Manager may at any time with
the consent of the Trustees and from time to time, delegate any of its
powers to any person.

A delegation pursuant to this clause may be:

(@) Subject to such conditions and on such terms for the protection
and convenience of persons dealing with the delegate as the
person making the delegation thinks fit; and

(b) Amended or revoked at any time.
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5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.7

5.7.1

5.8

5.8.1

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.3

6.3.1

if the Trustees or the Administration Manager exercise a power that is
for the time being delegated that shall not revoke the delegation.

The Trustees shall not be liable for any act or defaults of any delegatee
of the Administration Manager.

Expenses of Administration

The Administration Manager may pay from the Fund such costs, charges
and expenses of management, administration and investment of the
Fund as are properly payable by the Administration Manager on behalf
of the Fund.

The Administration Manager shall be paid from the Fund such fees or
charges for its administration of the Fund and the trusts contained in
this Trust Deed, as shall from time to time be authorised by the Trustees.

Indemnity of Administration Manager

The Administration Manager shall not be liable for any loss which is
not attributable to the Administration Manager’s own dishonesty and
the Trustees shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Administration
Manager from the Fund against all claims demands and liabilities from
Members or persons not parties to this Trust Deed, howsoever arising.

Execution of Deeds

If the Trustees are incorporated as a Board the Trustees shall obtain

and adopt a common seal of the Board. The common seal of the Board
shall be kept in the safe custody of the Administration Manager. The
common seal shall only be used by the authority of the Board or of a
committee of the Board authorised by the Board in that behalf, and
every instrument to which the common seal is affixed shall be signed by
a member of the Board and shall be countersigned by a second member
of the Board or by some other person appointed by the Board for the
purpose.

MEMBERSHIP COVERAGE
Admission of Members

Only Local Authorities shall be eligible for admission as Members of
the Fund.

A Local Authority shall not be admitted to membership without first
entering into a Participation Deed with the Fund in the form and on the
terms acceptable to the Trustees.

In executing a Participation Deed the Local Authority shall agree to be
bound by the terms of this Trust Deed.

Withdrawal from Membership

Any Member may withdraw from membership of the Fund by
giving notice in writing to the Trustees of its desire to withdraw
from membership, on or before the end of any Fund Year, and their
membership shall terminate at the end of the Fund Year following.

Any notice in writing of a Member’s desire to withdraw from
membership may itself be withdrawn at any time prior to the
termination of its membership.

Members who have given notice of their desire to withdraw from the
Fund shall pay their Annual Contributions due for the following Fund
Year.

Suspension or Termination of Membership

Membership of the Fund may be terminated or membership rights
suspended, by resolution of the Trustees, in the event that a Member:

(@) Refuses or fails to comply with the reasonable directions of the
Trustees given for the purpose of minimizing or reducing the
exposure, limiting the risks and diminishing the potential for loss or
damage to its Infrastructure; or

(b) Refuses or fails to allow an audit of the Member’s management of
the risk to its Infrastructure; or
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6.4.4
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(©)  Omits to make or unduly delays payment of its Annual
Contribution; or

(d) Commits any breach of the provisions of this Trust Deed or its
Participation Deed which in the opinion of the Trustees warrants
the termination or suspension of membership.

A former Member may if so desiring re-apply for membership, but
if successful shall not thereby gain any benefit credit or entitlement
accruing consequent upon their former membership.

The action or decision of the Trustees in any matter relating to
membership or suspension or termination of membership shall be final
and binding.

Coverage

Coverage of Members shall commence from the later of the date of
payment of the initial Annual Contribution (or part thereof if so agreed)
and the Extraordinary Contribution (if any, or part thereof if so agreed)
as required by the Trustees or such other date as may be agreed in
writing by the Trustees.

There shall be no Coverage of Local Authorities that are not Members.

Upon termination or suspension of membership all Coverage shall cease
from the date of termination or suspension as the case may be, and

the Member shall not be eligible for Coverage until re-admission to
membership (in the case of termination) or (in the case of suspension)
the lifting of the suspension by further resolution of the Trustees, or the
satisfaction of any pre-condition imposed for the automatic lifting of the
suspension of the Member.

On termination of membership all claim, right, title or interest or benefit
in the assets of the Fund shall forthwith cease.

GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO
CONTRIBUTIONS

Annual Contributions
The Trustees shall before the end of each Fund Year:

(@ Fix the Asset Value of each Member’s Infrastructure, having regard
to:

(i}  their Stated Value;

(i)  any actual valuation made of a Member’s Infrastructure, or
any parts of it;

(i) any other measure (including valuations) which may enable
or assist the Trustees to assess the value of Members’
Infrastructure;

(iv) any appropriate method or principles of valuation whether or
not they are the same as those applied in any other valuation
of the Members’ Infrastructure or parts of it.

(b) Determine the approximate amount of total Annual Contributions
to be sought from Members for the ensuing Fund Year having
regard to:

(i) the combined Asset Values of Members as determined in
clause 7.1.1(a) above; and

(i) the risk or exposure of the Members' Infrastructure to
Damaging Events; and

(iliy possible Deductibles; and
(iv) any other factors that seem relevant:

The Trustees shall after determining the approximate amount of the total
Annual Contributions to be sought from Members for the ensuing Fund

Year fix the Annual Contributions to be paid by individual Members, and
in fixing the Annual Contributions to be paid by individual Members the

Trustees shall have regard to:
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(@)  The risk or exposure of the Member to a Damaging Event in
its region compared with the risk or exposure of Members to
Damaging Events generally;

(b) The Asset Value of the Member, as determined by the Trustees
pursuant to clause 7.1.1(a);

(0 The likely availability to the Member of other monies by way of
compensation, indemnity, replacement or subsidy for the loss or
damage to its Infrastructure, including any payment from central
government, from insurance claims, and any rights against persons
not party to this Trust Deed;

(d) The quantum of any Deductible for the Member which the
Trustees may fix;

(e)  The state of repair, maintenance and condition generally of the
Member’s Infrastructure or parts of it;

() The nature of any particular risks affecting the Member's
Infrastructure;

(@)  Any refusal or persistent failure by the Member to comply with any
reasonable directions given by the Administration Manager for the
purpose of identifying and managing risk.

Members shall then be advised of the Annual Contribution payable by
them, and the amount of any Deductible.

Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore contained the Trustees may
adopt or determine such methods of setting Annual Contributions or
Extraordinary Contributions as they in their absolute discretion think fit.

Method of Payment

Payment of the Annual Contributions shall be effected by the Members
in accordance with any provisions of the Participation Deed for
payment, or in the absence of any such provisions as from time to time
determined by the Trustees.

Any unpaid Annual Contribution as determined by the Administration
Manager shall be recoverable by the Fund as a debt with associated
interest and recovery costs.

Disputes regarding Quantum of Annual Contributions

If the Member disputes the quantum of any Annual Contribution it shall
give written notice to the Administration Manager within twenty-one
days of receipt of advice of the quantum, following which the quantum
of the Annual Contribution payable by the Member shall be reviewed by
the Trustees, whose decision as to the appropriate quantum to be paid
shall be final and binding.

Where the quantum of the Annual Contribution is not determined
until after the date on which payment of the Annual Contribution was
due, the Member shall have ten days following receipt of advice in
writing of the determination of the dispute in which to pay the Annual
Contribution.

Except as otherwise provided above the action or decision of the
Trustees in fixing the Annual Contributions shall be final and binding.

Extraordinary Contributions
The Trustees may fix Extraordinary Contributions.

Subject to clause 7.1.4 in determining the quantum of any Extraordinary
Contribution as a condition of entry to membership the Trustees shall
have regard to:

(@ The number of Fund Years completed since the Commencement
Date;

(b)  The net value of the assets of the Fund had there been no
Distributions from the Fund;

(©)  The current value of the assets, and the amount of any liabilities of
the Fund;

(d)  Any other factors which seem relevant to the Trustees.
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In determining the quantum of any Extraordinary Contribution being
fixed for Coverage of a part or portion of a Fund Year the Trustees shall
have regard to the Annual Contribution that would have been payable
by the Member for Coverage for the full Fund Year and, that part or
portion of the Fund Year for which Coverage is being provided.

Any decision of the Trustees regarding the quantum of any Extraordinary
Contribution shall be final and binding.

Any Extraordinary Contribution fixed by the Trustees that is not paid
may be recovered in the same way as an Annual Contribution including
associated interest and recovery costs.

DISTRIBUTIONS FROM THE FUND

A Member may at any time within nine calendar months (time being of
the essence) of a Damaging Event apply to the Trustees for a Distribution
from the Fund in respect of any loss or damage caused to the Member's
Infrastructure by that Damaging Event.

Upon receiving an application for a Distribution in respect of a
Damaging Event, the Trustees shall satisfy themselves that:

(@) the loss or damage is to Infrastructure;
(b)  the loss or damage was caused by the Damaging Event.

Once the Trustees have satisfied themselves as to the matters specified
in clause 8.2, they may make a Distribution to the Member in respect of
its application, subject to:

(@) any Asset Value or Stated Value of the Member’s Infrastructure;

(b)  the state of repair, maintenance and condition generally of the
Infrastructure or of any particular parts of the Infrastructure
before and after the Damaging Event for which the Distribution is
claimed;

(¢  the Member's Deductible;

(d) the expected availability when the Annual Contribution was set
and the actual availability to the Member of other monies by way
of compensation, indemnity, replacement or subsidy for the loss or
damage to its Infrastructure, including any payment from central
government, from insurance claims, and any rights against persons
not party to this Trust Deed;

(e)  the desirability of the Fund maintaining reserves for future
Damaging Events;

f)  the length of time that the Member has been a Member of the
Fund;

(@) any other factors which seem relevant to the Trustees.

The Trustees at their sole discretion will determine what if any
Distribution will be made in any situation where in the Trustees’
opinion the damage is a consequence of an act of war or
terrorism.

Without being bound to see or being liable for not seeing to the
application of any Distributions from the Fund, the Trustees shall take
reasonable steps to ensure each Distribution from the Fund is applied
by its Members for the reinstatement of their Infrastructure, and for
that purpose, the Trustees may require from the Member reasonable
evidences of the expenditure, and may make progress payments.

The Trustees may also pay the whole or any part of the Fund to any
other charity that is charitable under New Zealand law and has purposes
similar or related to those of the Fund.

ALTERATION
Alteration of the Trust Deed

The Trustees may amend this Trust Deed in any way, subject to this
clause 9.
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9.1.2

9.1.3

9.2

9.2.1

9.2.2

9.3

9.3.1
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10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

10.2.1

10.2.2

The Trustees may by unanimous resolution of the Trustees present

at any validly convened meeting revoke, vary or add to any of the
provisions of this Trust Deed provided no such revocation, variation or
addition may be made if it would result in the Fund ceasing to qualify
for registration as a charitable entity under the Charities Act 2005 or
would vary the terms of this proviso or would otherwise be inconsistent
with the general charitable scope of the trusts contained in this Trust
Deed.

Every amendment shall be conditional upon and come into effect upon
the Settlor giving its consent in writing.

Amendments shall not be retrospective in effect.
Notice to Members

The Trustees shall notify Members forthwith in writing of every
amendment to this Trust Deed made pursuant to these provisions.

Any accidental failure or omission on the part of the Trustees to give
a Member notice as required by this clause, or its non-receipt by a
Member, shall not affect the validity of the amendment.

Alteration of Participation Deeds
The Trustees, with the agreement of a Member, may from time to time:

(@ Amend any of the provisions of the Participation Deed relating to
the Member; or

(b) Cancel any Participation Deed and in substitution, enter into a
new Participation Deed with a Member.

WINDING UP OF THE FUND
Procedures

The Trustees shall wind up the Fund and shali apply the provisions of
this Clause in relation to every Member:

(@)  If the Trustees unanimously resolve that the Fund shall be wound
up, and advise the Settlor accordingly, and the Settlor consents
thereto; or

(b) Upon the determination of the trusts hereof; or
() Upon any insolvency of the Fund; or
(d) Upon any order of the Court that the Fund be wound up.

The Trustees shall within fourteen days after they have resolved to wind
up the Fund, lodge a copy of that resolution with the Settlor and (the
Settlor consenting thereto) with the Registrar of Incorporated Societies.

The Trustees shall for the purpose of winding up the Fund:

(@) Ensure that final accounts of the Fund are prepared showing the
financial position of the Fund as at the date on which the winding
up commenced; and

(b)  Ensure that those final accounts are audited; and

(¢) As soon as practicable after the final accounts have been audited
send a copy of those accounts to the Settlor and all the Members
as at the date the winding up commenced.

Allocation of Proceeds

Members shall have no right or claim against the Fund on winding up
except in respect of any application for a Distribution made prior to the
commencement of the winding up.

The Trustee shall apply the proceeds of the Fund in accordance with the
following priority:

(@) First, in providing for the payment of the costs of the winding up;

(b) Secondly, in providing for the payment of all liabilities and debts of
the Fund;

1
11.1

11.1.1

11.1.2

11.21

11.2.2

11.3.1

11.3.2

11.4.1
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(&)  Thirdly, paying any outstanding Distributions which the Trustees
have resolved to pay any Member prior to the commencement of
the winding up and remain unpaid at that date;

(d) Fourthly, in providing for payment of any Distributions for
which applications have been made immediately prior to the
commencement of the winding up;

(e) Finally, payment of any balance in the Fund is to be made or
transferred to another organisation as decided by the Trustees
that is charitable under New Zealand law and has purposes similar
or related to those of the Fund, or in default of a decision by the
Trustees, as directed by the Court pursuant to section 27 of
the Act.

MISCELLANEOUS
Notices

Any notice or document shall be deemed to have been served upon
the Trustees if left at the registered office of the Fund or if sent through
the post in a registered letter addressed to the Administration Manager
at that office. Any notice or document shall be deemed to have been
duly given to a Member, if given generally or sent to the Member at the
address of the Member last known to the Administration Manager.

Any notice or document delivered by post shall be deemed to have
been delivered in the ordinary course of post and in proving such service
it shall be sufficient to prove that the envelope or wrapper containing

it was properly addressed and posted. A statement signed by the
Administration Manager that a notice was so addressed and posted to a
Member and when, shall be conclusive evidence of those facts.

Succession

If the activities of any of the Appointors are assigned to or succeeded by
any other undertaking (whether a corporation, association partnership
or natural person) then that other undertaking may, with the written
approval of the Trustees as from the date of the assignment or
succession, take the place of that Appointor for the purposes of the
Fund, and assume all rights and obligations of that Appointor under the
Trust Deed.

If the Trustees do not give their written approval of such other
undertaking taking the place of that Appointor, then the Fund shall
either be wound up in accordance with the provisions of this Trust
Deed, or the Trustees may appoint another body to take over the role of
that Appointor.

Waiver and Precedent

No failure by the Trustees to enforce any breach of any obligation

or provision contained or implied in by this Trust, in one, or more
instances shall constitute a waiver of the right of the Trustees to enforce
any other provision, or any subsequent breach, whether against the
same Member or another.

No action on the part of the Trustees or the Administration Manager
whether taken in accordance with any specific provisions contained

in this Trust Deed or otherwise shall be taken as a precedent for any
like or similar action on either part and neither the Trustees nor the
Administration Manager may thereafter be compelled to take similar or
identical action consequent thereupon.

Office

The office of the Fund shall be at the offices of the New Zealand Local
Government Insurance Corporation Limited, 9th Floor, Civic Assurance
House, 114 Lambton Quay, Wellington, or at such other place as the
Trustees may from time to time by resolution determine.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Deed has been executed on the day and year first hereinbefore written.

THE COMMON SEAL of the )
NEW ZEALAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT )
ASSOCIATION INCORPORATED was )
hereunto affixed in the presence of: )
Signed by )
ROBERT DAVID RENNIE ELLIOTT )
in the presence of: )
Signed by )
WYNNE ARCHDALL RAYMOND )
in the presence of: )
Signed by )
DALE ALWYN LOTT )
in the presence of: )
Signed by ]
KINSLEY NEVILLE SAMPSON )
in the presence of: )
Signed by )
IAN ROBERT FLOCKHART MCKELVIE )
in the presence of: )
Signed by )
LANGLEY DAVID CAVERS ]

in the presence of: }
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PARTICIPATION DEED

ADMITTING

---------------------------------------------------

TO MEMBERSHIP OF
THE NEW ZEALAND LOCAL AUTHORITY PROTECTION
PROGRAMME DISASTER FUND
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THIS DEED is made the __ day of 200._.

BETWEEN NEW ZEALAND LOCAL AUTHORITY PROTECTION
PROGRAMME DISASTER FUND (“the Fund”) and

NEW ZEALAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT INSURANCE
CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Administration Manager)

(together called “the Administration”)

AND being a Local Authority as
defined in the Trust Deed (“the Member")

BACKGROUND

A. The Trustees of the New Zealand Local Authority Protection
Programme Disaster Fund are incorporated as a Board pursuant to
the Charitable Trusts Act, 1957 {“the Board”).

B. The Fund is also registered as a charitable entity under the Charitable
Trusts Act 1957.

C. The Settlor of the Fund is the New Zealand Local Government
Association Incorporated. The Settlor established the Fund as a seif
funding disaster protection scheme for the purposes of and for the
objects set out in the original trust deed dated 29 June 1993. The
trust deed was amended by deeds of variation dated 14 February
1997 and 5 June 2003. The trust deed was further amended and all
amendments consolidated by a new trust deed dated 14 December
2007 (“the Trust Deed”).

B. The New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Limited is
the Administration Manager of the Fund.

B The Trust Deed contains provision for Local Authorities to apply for
membership of the Fund, and for their admission to membership of
the Fund, on the terms required by the Board.

F. The Member has applied to become a member of the Fund, and
is being admitted as a member on the terms and conditions
contained herein.

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES AND IT IS AGREED
AND DECLARED

as follows:

1 MEMBERSHIP
Admission to Membership

1. The Member hereby covenants and agrees with the Administration to
be bound by

(a) the terms of the Trust Deed, as if it were a party to the Trust
Deed; and

(b) this Participation Deed;

and acknowledges and accepts the powers, discretions and
authorities of the Board, and the Administration Manager appointed
pursuant to the Trust Deed, as provided in the Trust Deed.

2. In consideration of the Member agreeing to be bound by the terms of
the Trust Deed, and of this Participation Deed, the Member is hereby
admitted as a Member of the Fund.

Withdrawal, Suspension or Termination of Membership

Withdrawal from, termination and suspension of membership shall be effected
in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.
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2 COVERAGE AND DEDUCTIBLE
Coverage

Coverage of the Member shall commence on the date appearing in the First
Schedule and shall continue until the Member’s membership of the Fund is
either terminated, or the Member is suspended, as provided in the Trust Deed.

Deductible

The level of any deductible shall be fixed by the Board and the first such
deductible shall be as provided in the First Schedule.

3 CONTRIBUTIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS
Payment of Annual Contributions

1. The Member shall pay to the Fund its Annual Contribution as
determined by the Board, within 14 days of the commencement of
each Fund Year, or as otherwise agreed by the Administration
in writing.

2. The Member shall pay the sum set out in, and in the manner provided
in the First Schedule, as its first Annual Contribution.

Payment of Extraordinary Contributions

The Member shall forthwith pay to the Fund the Extraordinary Contribution set
out in the First Schedule.

Distributions

1. The Member shall in making an application for a Distribution use any
form of application which the Administration may prescribe, and shall
from time to time provide such information as the Administration may
reasonably require to enable it to consider the Member's application.

2. Any Distribution from the Fund shall be at the sole and absolute
discretion of the Board, which shall, having regard to the factors set
out in the Trust Deed, act in accordance with the objectives of the
Fund and in the interests of all members.

3. The amount of the Deductible applying at the time of any Natural
Disaster or Emergency or event shall be deducted from any
Distribution from the Fund in respect of the same.

4 ASSET VALUES
Information Regarding Assets

1. The Member shall within 3 months of the commencement of each
Fund Year or such lesser period as the Administration may from time
to time advise:

(a) supply the Administration with any information regarding
categories, details and condition of its Infrastructure, including
any list of or register of its Infrastructure, both insured
and uninsured, and any insurance particulars, which the
Administration may reasonably require;

(b) state to the Administration in writing its estimate of the cost of
reinstatement of its Infrastructure;

2. The Member shall advise the Administration of any additions or
deletions to its Infrastructure, during the Fund Year.

5 RISK MANAGEMENT AND AUDIT
Risk Management
The Member agrees to:

(@) introduce and maintain such programs to identify, assess and control
risks applicable to its Infrastructure, as may from time to time be
reasonably required by the Administration; and



(b) notify the Administration of any matters, events or things which
might be reasonably considered relevant to the assessment and
management of the risk or exposure of the Member's Infrastructure to
Natural Disasters and Emergencies.

Audit of Infrastructure

The Member agrees that the Administration Manager may from time to time
inspect and audit the Member's Infrastructure and all records and information
pertaining thereto.

6 ALTERATION
Alteration of the Trust Deed

1 The Member acknowledges that every alteration or amendment to
the Trust Deed shall upon the consent of the Settlor being given in
writing, be binding on the Member as to its terms and conditions, as
if it were a party thereto.

2 This Participation Deed shall be deemed to be amended to the
extent and in the manner (if any) required as a consequence of the
amendment of the Trust Deed.

7 MISCELLANEOUS
Co-operation

The Member agrees to take all such other actions and supply such information
and assistance as the Administration may reasonably require from time to time
in order to give effect to the provisions and purposes of the Trust Deed and
this Participation Deed, including (without limitation) following any rules or
guidelines or prescribed procedures required by the Administration, not being
rules guidelines or procedures inconsistent with this Participation Deed or the
Trust Deed.

No Assignment

The Member may not assign its rights under this Participation Deed or any
of its rights or obligations as a member of the Fund to any other person, or
encumber, charge or otherwise dispose of any of its right, entitlement or
interest in the Fund.
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Notices

1 Any notice or document shall be deemed to have been served upon
the Administration if left at the registered office of the Fund or if sent
through the post in a letter addressed to that office.

2 Any notice or document shall be deemed to have been duly served on
the Member, if delivered personally to the Member's chief executive
officer, or if sent through the post to the Member at the address of
the Member last known to the Administration.

3 Any notice or document delivered by post shall be deemed to have
been delivered in the ordinary course of post, and in proving such
service it shall be sufficient to prove that the envelope or wrapper
containing it was properly addressed and posted.

8 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
Definitions

1 Each of the following words and expressions shall, unless the context
otherwise requires, have the following meanings:

“the Trust Deed” means the consolidated Trust Deed dated
14 December 2007;

“the Board” means the Trustees of the Fund and vice versa.

2 The words and expressions used in this Participation Deed shall unless
the context otherwise requires have the same definitions as given
them in the Trust Deed.

Interpretation

1 Unless the context otherwise requires the same interpretations shall
be placed on words and phrases used in this Participation Deed as
contained in the Trust Deed.

2 In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of this
Deed and the provisions of the Trust Deed, the provisions of the Trust
Deed shall prevail.

3 Nothing in this Participation Deed shall be taken to excuse the failure
of the Member to perform any and each of its obligations as a
Member of the Fund, nor the commission of any act in breach of its
obligations as a Member of the Fund, as set out in the Trust Deed.

FIRST SCHEDULE

Annual Contribution:

The Annual Contribution for the period 30 June 200_ to 30 June 200_is assessed at $

annual contribution.

Extraordinary Contribution:

The Extraordinary Contribution is assessed at $___,___ plus GST.

In consideration of the payment of the Extraordinary Contribution ................
including any discount on the assessed Annual Contribution for future years that the Fund Trustees may declare from time to time.

Deductible:

The Deductible shall be .__% of the asset value declared to the Fund for coverage.

..... Council shall immediately be entitled to full rights of Fund Membership

plus GST, less full member discount. This is the Member's first
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Deed has been executed on the day and year first herein before written.

THE COMMON SEAL of the NEW ZEALAND LOCAL AUTHORITY )
PROTECTION PROGRAMME DISASTER FUND was hereunto affixed |
in the presence of-:

THE COMMON SEAL of NEW ZEALAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT )
INSURANCE CORPORATION LIMITED was hereunto affixed )
in the presence of-:

THE COMMON SEAL of the ...l COUNCIL )

was hereunto affixed pursuant to a resolution of the Council, )
in the presence of-:
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